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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Members of ESL Steel Limited (Formerly Electrosteel Steels Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of ESL Steel Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the statement of Profit and Loss(including other Comprehensive
Income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other notes for the year ended
on that date (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the

Company as at March 31, 2024, and it’s loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’) specified under section 143(10) of

the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAl’)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have .
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note no. 44 of the financial Statement indicating that approval for Consent to Operate
(CTO) and Environmental Clearance (EC) is pending before Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate Change
(MoEF) and also long-term funding constraints currently being faced by the company and the losses being
incurred by it. However, considering the direction of Hon’ble Supreme Court of India allowing the continuation
of the operation of the company and financial and other support provided by the Holding Company, the financial
statements of the company due to the reasons stated in the said note have been prepared on going concern
basis, though the uncertainty on the Company’s ability to continue as such exists as on this date. Qur opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit

of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion .
on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the Key Audit Matters to be
communicated in our report:
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Key Audit Matters

Addressing the key audit matters

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) and Intangible Assets

(as described in note 5.4 and 4(a) of the financial statements)
Evaluation of the impairment involves | Our Audit procedures based on which we arrived at the
assessment of value in use of the Cash | conclusion regarding reasonableness of Impairment

Generating Units (CGUs) and requires significant
judgements and assumptions about the forecast
for cash flows, production, volume of
operations, selling prices of the product and
discount rate considered for arriving at the
present value of future cash flows.

The above includes the evaluation of plant and
equipment pertaining to expansion project
undertaken in earlier years and it’s prospects for
implementation in  near future and
implementation in this respect.

Impairment testing of PPE, CWIP and Intangible
assets were carried out during the year ended
March 31, 2018 and provision of Rs. 5,11,193.01
lakhs were made. No further provision or
reversal thereof has been considered necessary
during this year.

includes the following:

Critical evaluation of internal and external factors
impacting the entity’s performance and indicators of
impairment (or reversal thereof) in line with Ind AS
38;

Analysing the management’s review, contention and
representation regarding the project in progress and
adjustments needed against carrying value of the
assets. This includes, reviewing the status of plant
and equipment so far procured currently under
progress and being a technical matter placing
reliance on management contention and technical
advice in this respect;

Review of impairment covering the entire block of
tangible and intangible assets and capital work in
progress and valuation models used to determine
the recoverable amount by analysing the key
assumptions used by management in this respect
including:

- Consistency with respect to forecast for arriving

at the valuation and assessing the potential
impact of any variances;

- Price assumptions used in the models; and
- The assumption/estimation for the weighted

average cost of capital and rate of discount for
arriving at the value in use.

Review of projections at current capacity and volume

of operations and projected outcome thereagainst |

and impact thereof on overall

assessment.

impairment

Placing reliance on the management’s assumption
for future prospects, expansion of current capacity,
expected volume of business and sustainability of
the cash flows.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets (as described in note 48 of the financial statements)

Deferred tax assets amounting to Rs.
2,23,096.73 lakhs attributable to depreciation
have been carried forward in the financial
statements as at March 31, 2024. The above
outstanding amount is after reversal of Deferred
Tax Assets of Rs. 30,900.92 lakhs related to carry
forward business losses.

Our Audit procedures based on which we arrived at the
conclusion regarding reasonableness of recognition of
Deferred Tax includes the following:

Utilisation of Deferred tax assets have been tested
considering the period of expiry with respect to
carried forward business loss based on internal
forecasts prepared by the Company and probability
of future taxable income; e
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Key Audit Matters

Addressing the key audit matters

Deferred Tax Assets carried forward as on March
31, 2024 does not include Rs. 82,195.51 lakhs
(including Rs. 28,922.21 lakhs for the year) note
being recognised on account of carried forward
business losses including depreciation on year-
to-year basis following the principle of
conservatism.

We critically examined the temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of balances of assets
and liabilities as per Ind AS financial statement and
those considered for tax purposes;

Reversal of deferred liability due to timing
differences and possible adjustments of deferred tax
assets there against;

Critical review of the future projections and
underlying assumptions for broad consistency
following the principle of prudence for arriving at
reasonable degree of probability on assertions
thereof considering the past trends; and

Review of management’s assumption'with respect to
earning in future periods and taxability thereof and
placing reliance on such assumptions and projections
given the current and future scale of operations and
prevailing conditions and situations.

Evaluation of Accounting of Iron Ore Mines (as described in note 4(f) of the financial statements)

Recognition of Mining rights and Assets,
stripping  activity assets and generation
thereagainst, production profile, stripping ratio,
and proved/ probable reserves, categorization
of Mines as exploratory, development,
producing, liability for decommissioning costs
are based on Technical/ commercial evaluation
by the management.

Our Audit procedures based on which we arrived at the

conclusion

regarding reasonableness of disclosure

includes the following:

Review of the Production Profile and related
overburden as submitted by the management to the
authorities;

Examined the valuation process/methodology and
checks being performed to ensure that the valuation
of inventory are as per the policy prescribed in this
respect;

Evaluated the approach adopted by the
management in determining the expected costs of
decommissioning including appropriateness of
discount and inflation rates for estimating such cost
and determining the liability in this respect;

Review of the report submitted by Independent
technical consultants for estimated for of
decommissioning, restoration and other similar
liabilities;

Reliance has been placed on the report of
independent technical consultant for
proved/probable reserves in the mines.

Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures
made in the financial statements.

Reliance has been placed on the judgments and
estimation of the internal/ external experts for the
purpose of technical /commercial evaluation and
also submission made to authorities in this respect.
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Key Audit Matters

Addressing the key audit matters

Non-Renewal of Consent to Operate from JPSCB

(as described in note 44 of the financial statements)

The Company’s application for renewal of
Consent to Operate (‘CTO’) was denied by
Jharkhand State Pollution Control Board
(‘JSPCB’). Further Environmental Clearance has
also not been granted by Ministry of
Environment and Forest (MoEF).

MoEF vide its letter dated February 02, 2022 had
deferred the grant of EC till Forest Clearance (FC)
Stage-ll is granted to the company. Further,
MoEF vide its letter dated June 05, 2023 has
revoked the stage | clearence granted earlier
against which the company has made
representation for reconsideration. The
company has so far procured substantial portion
of land and the same have either been handed
over to forest department or is in the advance
stage of doing so for compensatory
afforestation.

Pending decision of MoEF on the mater, Hon'ble
Supreme Court has directed that operation of
steel plant shall not be interfered with on the
ground of want of EC, FC, CTE or CTO.

Pending completion of the entire process and
determination of aggregate cost, Rs. 19,699.69
lakhs (including Rs. 22,977.83 lakhs provided
during the period) (net of Rs. 26,830.69 lakhs
paid) towards cost of land and Rs. 20,556.58
lakhs towards other related costs etc. (net of Rs.
1,473.99 lakhs paid) has been provided on
estimated basis and have been carried forward
in the accounts as on March 31, 2024,

Our Audit procedures based on which we arrived at the
conclusion regarding reasonableness of “Going Concern”
include the following:

Obtained the status of the case from the legal
department and their view on the matter;

Evaluated the steps being taken by management for
ensuring the related compliances including those
relating to procurement of land for compensatory
afforestation and/or other costs thereof to be
provided by the company and plans for future course
of actions for obtaining Stage Il Clearance as required
for obtaining the environment clearance from MoEF;
Reviewed the provision made for cost of land to be
provided to forest department for compensatory
afforestation;

Reviewed the appropriateness of provision made for
afforestation and other costs to be incurred based on
the report received from EIA consultant after
considering the various concerns raised during the
public hearing on the matter and disclosures made in
this respect by the management;

Reliance has been placed on the estimate and
consultant report for cost of land and other costs to
be incurred for compensatory afforestation against
forest land; and

Further, reliance has also been placed on the legal
expert’s view vis-a-vis direction of Hon’ble Supreme
court of India concerning the operation of the plant
and consultants recommendation and report,
pending final decision on the matter.

Claims in respect of MDPA (as described in note 40(B) of the financial statements)

As at March 31, 2024, the Company has disputed
the demand raised in respect of shortfall in
terms of Mine Development and Production
Agreements (MDPA) entered into with respect
to the Iron Ore Block obligating certain
minimum production and despatch of Iron Ore
for each year of the operations.

Significant management judgement supported
by legal clarification on the matter is required to
assess such matters to determine the
probability of occurrence of outflow of
economic resources and materiality of the
amount involved.

Our Audit procedures based on which we arrived at the
conclusion regarding reasonableness of “Claims in respect
of MDPA” include the following:

Understood, assessed and tested the design and
operating effectiveness of key controls surrounding
assessment of litigations relating to the relevant laws
and regulations;

Inquired with the management for recent
developments and the status of the same as
reviewed and noted by the Audit Committee;
Performed our assessment on a test basis on the
underlying calculations supporting the said claim as
disclosed in the Standalene Financial Statements;
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Key Audit Matters Addressing the key audit matters

e Evaluated management’s assessments by
understanding precedents set in similar cases and
assessed the reliability of the management’s past
estimates/judgements;

e In case of demand made provisionally review of the
possibilities of meeting the shortfall on aggregate
year to year basis;

e Assessed the adequacy of the Company’s
disclosures;

e Examined external legal opinions and other evidence

to corroborate management’s assessment of the

possibility of the liability against the demand raised
in terms of MDPA; and )

Reliance has been placed on such legal interpretation

and opinion provided on the matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon. The other information as stated above is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
Auditors’ Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of the Management and those charged with governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs (financial position), Loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

_This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design anhd perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not deteéting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a .
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Further to our comments in the annexure referred to in the paragraph above, as required by Section 143(3)
of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), and the
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; and

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.
Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control with reference to financial statements.

3.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note no. 40 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts — Refer Note
no. 46(d) to the financial statements;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

() Based on the audit procedures and generally accepted auditing practices followed in terms of SAs
that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement; and

v. The company has not declared any dividend during the year thereby reporting under Section
143(11)(f) is not applicable for the company. )

vi. Based on the verification carried out by an Independent professional appointed for the purpose and
our examination of the data and details provided to us, which included test checks and samples
obtained by us in this respect and being a technical matter placing reliance on the report submitted
by them, we report that the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of
account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same was operational throughout the year. Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit
trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention in this respect is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024 and as such the same has not been reported upon by us.

4. With respect to the reporting under section 197(16) of the Act to be included in the Auditors’ Report, In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid to the Whole
time Director for reasons stated in Note no. 32.1 has exceeded the limit specified under provisions of Section
197 of the Act for which necessary ratification is being sought from the Shareholders. Further, the sitting
fees paid by the Company to its other Directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act and is not in excess of the limit laid down therein except for commission to be paid
to them as approved by the Board of Directors which as stated in Note no. 35.4 is subject to shareholder’s
approval.

For Lodha & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s ICAI Registration No.: 301051E/ E300284

7NN

Ashim Kumar Ghosh

Partner

Membership No: 054565
UDIN: 24054565BKHORUG6274

Place: Kolkata
Date: April 17, 2024
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE:

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
to the Members of ESL Steel Limited of even date)

i) a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situations of Property, Plant and Equipments and Intangible Assets.

b. The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of Property, Plant and Equipment
in a phased manner over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to this program, a comprehensive
and detailed verification of Property, plant and Equipment and Capital Work in Progress was carried
out in earlier year by engaging the services of an Independent firm of professional and no such
verification has been carried out in this year. The discrepancies noted on such verification even
though material in certain cases had been properly dealt with in the books of account.

¢.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based *
on the title documents, records, confirmation from Security Trustees provided to us, we report that,
the title deeds, comprising of all the immovable properties of land and building are held in the name
of the Company as on the balance sheet date except certain land for which lease deeds are yet to
be executed as detailed below: (Refer Note no. 5.3 of the financial statements).

(Amount Rs. In Lakhs) ‘

Particulars Area Gross Block
Land- Pending execution of Lease Deed 325.19 acres * 10,517:75
Land- Pending compliance of compensatory | 455.35 acres 53,142.06
afforestation*

*Amount includes estimated cost for land towards compensatory afforestation capitalized as Right
of Use (ROU) Assets, pending clearance from MoEF.

As stated in Note no. 5.3, the title deed with respect to above land are to be regularised after
obtaining necessary approvals of the authorities and charge holders.

d. The company is not following revaluation model of accounting and accordingly has not revalued any
of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) and Intangible Assets during
the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3 (i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

e. As per the information and explanation given to us and as represented by the management, no
proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March
31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, further reporting under Clause 3
(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ii) a. As informed, the inventories of the Company except for materials in transit and stock lying with
third parties at year end have been physically verified by the independent firm of professionals
along with the management during the year. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the frequency of such verification is reasonable, and procedure followed
for such verification is appropriate. As the Company’s inventory of raw materials comprises mostly
of bulk materials such as coal, coke, iron ore, etc. requiring technical expertise for quantification,
the Company has hired an independent agency for the physical verification of the stock of these
materials. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification between the physical stock and book *
stock of inventories to the extent verified during the year, were not 10% or more in aggregate for
each class of inventory and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.
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b. According to the information and explanation given to us the company has been sanctioned working
capital limit in excess of Rupees Five Crores on the basis of securities of Current Assets of the
company. On the basis of examination of returns/statements submitted upto February 2024 by the
Company to the banks in this respect, as provided to us for the purpose, these were in agreement
with the books and records and the financial statements prepared therefrom by the management.
However, the return for the month of March 2024 has not been submitted to the banks and as such
cannot be commented upon by us.

iii) The Company has not made investments, provided any guarantee of security or granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, clause 3 (iii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans
granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

v) The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed
deposits as at March 31, 2024 from public covered under Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder and therefore, the provisions of clause 3(v) of
the Order is not applicable to the company.

vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148 (1) of the
Act in respect of the Company’s products to which the said rules are made applicable and are of the
opinion that prima facie, the prescribed records have been maintained. We have however, not
made a detailed examination of the said records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

vii) a. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has
generally been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Investor Education Protection fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income
Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Service tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value
Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues as applicable to it. Further, there were no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues in arrear as at March 31, 2024 for a
period of more than six months from the date they become payable except for Provident Fund
under Employees’ Provident Funds And Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 amounting to Rs. 4.18
lakhs.

b. Disputed dues of sales tax, income tax, customs duty, wealth tax, excise duty, service tax, and Cess,
if any, prior to the effective date i.e., June 04, 2018 stand extinguished in terms of the resolution
plan approved by Hon’ble NCLT. This is supported by the legal opinion taken by the company and
various judicial pronouncements on the said matter. Having regard to this, there are no dues of
Provident Fund, Investor Education Protection fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Wealth Tax, Service tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax,
Cess and other material statutory dues, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii) In our opinion and on the basis of information and explanations given to us and as represented by
the management, we have neither come across nor have been informed of transactions which were
previously not recorded in books of account and that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix) a. Inour opinion and on the basis of information and explanations given to us by the management, we
are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions,
banks or debenture holders. '
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b. According to the information, explanations and representation given to us by the management, we
report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

c. In our opinion and on the basis of information and explanations given to us by the management,
the Company has not taken any term loan during the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c)
of the Order is not applicable.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the
company has used funds raised on short-term basis aggregating to Rs. 1,80,469.38 lakhs for long-
term purposes.

e. Inour opinion and on the basis of examination of the books of records the company does have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the -
Order is not applicable. -

X) a. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

b.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3
(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi) a.  During the course of our examination of books of account carried out during the year in accordance
with generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across incidence of any
material fraud by or on the company nor have we been informed of any such case by the
management.

b. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information *
and explanations given to us and representation received from the management, a report under
Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 has not been filed with the Central Government.

c. Asrepresented to us by the management and as far as ascertained from examination of books of
and records in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have taken into
consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the company during the year and those
considered relevant and material have been taken into account while determining the nature,
timing and extent of audit procedures. ‘

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
Financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Page 11 of 15




LODHA
&COur

Xiv) a. The Internal audit of the Company has been carried out by a firm of Chartered Accountants. The
system followed, in our opinion, is generally commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b. Further, we have considered, during the course of our audit, the reports of the internal auditor for
the period under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till the date of our audit, in ~
determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures in accordance with the guidance
provided in SA 610 “Using the work of Internal Auditors”.

xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented to us by the
management and based on our examination of the records, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xvi) a. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
company. .

b. The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance Activities without a
valid certificate of registration as required under Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

c. The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d. In our opinion and based on the representation received by us from the management, there is no
core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the company.

xvii) On the basis of overall examination of the financial statement, the Company has incurred cash losses
during the financial year covered by our audit but has not incurred cash losses in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

Xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors, Management plans as provided to us including as stated in
Note no. 46(iii)(a) and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts and assumptions as represented
to us up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due for payment.

XX) The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.
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Xxi) The company does not have any subsidiary/associate hence consolidated financial statements are
not applicable to the company and thereby reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not
applicable

For Lodha & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s ICAl Registration No.: 301051E/ E300284

Place: Kolkata
Date: April 17, 2024

Ashim Kumar Ghosh

Partner

Membership No: 054565
UDIN: 24054565BKHORUG274
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
report the Members of ESL Steel Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of ’
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of ESL Steel
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated under the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations
of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (“COSO 2013"). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our

audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk

that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ .
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis =
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of th
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
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company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. ‘

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in COSO
2013.

For Lodha & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s ICAl Registration No.: 301051E/ E300284

il o

Ashim Kumar Ghosh

Partner

Membership No: 054565
UDIN: 24054565BKHORU6274

Place: Kolkata
Date: April 17, 2024
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ESL STEEL LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Note No. As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 4,43,749.07 4,48,552.06
(b) Capital work-in-progress 6 1,70,018.23 1.29,895.94
{c) Other Intangible Assets 7 42,128.38 46,816.63
{d) Financial Assets:
(i) Other Financial Assets 8 9.542.42 9.323.62
(e} Non Current Tax Assets (net) 9 2,178.45 2,461.57
(f) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 48 2,23,096.73 254,892 24
() Other Non-Current Assets 10 7,225.19 2,909.06
Total Non-Current Assets 8,97,939.47 8,94,851.12
Current assets
(a) Inventories 11 1,06,339.14 1,359,439 34
(b) Financial Assets: :
(i} Investments 12 2,001.50 2,003.39
(i) Trade Receivables 13 11,070.28 24,862.95
(i) Cash and Cash Cquivalents 14 15,950.80 3,503.65
{iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) abave 15 11,397.04 15,841.10
(v) Other Financial Assets 16 2,637.11 1,491 20
(c} Other Current Assets 17 33,459.67 42,589.13
Total Current Assets 1,82,855.54 2,29,730.76
TOTAL ASSETS .80, 11,24581.88
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 18 1,84,903,02 1,84,503.02
(b} Other Equity 19 2,74,965.34 3,71,803 41
Total Equity 4,59,868.36 5,56,706.43
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities:
{i) Berrownings 20 1,48,895.68 1,94,548.75
(ii) Lease Liabilities EL] 2,503.15 1,468.21
(b) Provisions 21 22,333.99 21,937.59
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,73,732.80 2,17,954.55
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities:
(i) Barrowings 2 80,432.66 46,041.60
(ii} Lease Liabilities 39 21,637.57 17,534.16
{iii) Operational Buyers' Credit / Suppliers’ Credit 45 86,364.88 1,27.774.84
(iv) Trade Payables 23
- Total Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 7,883.23 6,508.12
- Tolal Outstanding dues of credilors other than micro
and small enterprises 57,335.35 60,852.72
(v) Other Financial Liabiities 24 24,652.49 13,072.41
(b) Other Current Liabilities 25 1,68,721.39 77.907 41
(c) Provisions 26 166.28 189.64
Total Current Liabilities 4,47,193.85 3,49,920.90
Total Liabilities 6,20,926.65 5,67,875.45
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,80,795.01 11,24,561.88

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying noles (1 to 51} form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Lodha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Ashim Kumar Ghosh
Partner

Place: Kelkata
Dated: April 17, 2024

Sensitivity: Confidential (C2)

For and on behalf of the Board of Dii:‘u_clo_rs A )
- GA h\\\.\\l ~ 0
_ A .

A Sumathi
(DIN : 07147100)

Ashish Kumar Gupta
{DIN: 07808012)

Anand Prakash Dubey

\a

AN

Manish Kumar Chaudhary

M.No. ACS 23037

Non-Executive Directar

[\‘-ﬂ.i.‘-;}."_ . '__)

Whafe time Director -

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary




ESL STEEL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Note No. Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from Operations
Sale of Products 27 8,30,046.22 7,85,181.04
Other Operating Income 28 20,765.56 12,576.88
Total Revenue from Operations 8,50,811.78 7,97,757.92
Other Income 29 11,052.14 7,470.22
Total Income 8,61,863.92 8,05,228.14
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 30 4,38,598.59 5,02,292.24
Changes in Inventories of Finished/ Semi-Finished Goods and Stock-in-Trade 31 14,808.97 (40,542.28)
Employee Benefits Expense 32 22,589.61 21,326.21
Finance Costs 33 43,161.44 37,605.47
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 34 46,300.78 44,375.30
Other Expenses 35 3,58,742.98 2,87,248.45
Total Expenses 9,24,202.37 8,52,205.39
Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (62,338.45) (47,077.25)
Exceptional ltems 36 (2,579.22) -
Profit/ (loss) before tax (64,917.67) (47,077.25)
Tax expense: 48

(1) Current tax - -

(3) Deferred Tax 31,839.15 3,713.34
Profit/ (loss) for the year (96,756.82) (55,790.59)
Other Comprehensive Income: LI

{i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 37 (124.89) (423.96)

(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 48 43.64 148.15
Other Comprehensive Income (net of taxes) (81.25) (275.81)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (comprising of Profit/(Loss) and Other
Comprehensive Income for the year) (96,838.07) (56,066.40)

Earning per Equity Share [Face value of Rs. 10 each]:
Basic and Diluted

42

(5.23) (3.02)

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1to 51) form an integral p

As per our report of even date

For Lodha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Ashim Kumar Ghosh
Partner

Place: Kolkata
Dated: April 17, 2024

Sensitivity: Confidential (C2)

art of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

: C’Q\ U

A Sumathi " Non-Executive Director

(DIN : 07147100)

Ashish Kumar Gupta

Whole time Dire 225
(DIN : 07808012)

Anand Prakash Dubey Chief financial Officer

Manish Kumar Chaudhary Company Secretary
M.No. ACS 23037



ESL STEEL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Year Ended
March 31, 2023

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities

Profit/(Loss) before tax

Adjustment to reconcile Profit/(Loss) before tax to net cash generated from operating activities
Depreciation and amortization expenses

Loss/{profit) on sale/discard of fixed assets
Sundry Credit balances/Provision no longer required written back
Sundry Balances written-oft
Unrealised (gain)/ Loss on foreign currency translation and transaction
Net gain/(loss) on Derivative Instruments on fair valuation through profit and loss
Interest Income
Net Gain/(loss) on Current Investments on Fair Valuation through profit and loss
Impairment Allowance for doubtful debts, Advances and deposits
Finance Cost
Operating prafit/(loss) before Working Capital Changes
iviovements in working capital :
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories
(Decrease)/Increase in Trade Payables, Other financial/Non-Financial liabilities and Provisions
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables (net of advances received)
Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances, Other financial/non-financial asets and other assets
Cash generated from / (used in) aperations
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net Cash flow generated / (used in) Operating Activities (A)

B. Cash flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments (other than ROU Assets) including intangible
assets and movement in Capital Work in Progress

Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipments

Movement in Fixed Deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)

Investment in mutual funds

Sale Proceeds on disposal of mutual funds

Interest received

MNet Cash flow generated / (used in) Investing Activities (B)

Cash flow from Financing Activities

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Proceeds/(Repayment) from short-term borrowings (net)

Payment against Lease Liabilities {including cost of land for afforestation)
Interest and other borrowing cost paid

Net Cash flow generated / (used in) Financing Activities (C)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note no. 14)

Sensitivity: Confidential {C2)

(64,917.67)

(47,077.25)

46,300.78 44,375 30
307.88 571.10
(7,019.29) (2,506.72)
1,085.72 782.97
(457.47) 62.60
(15.24) (849.67)
(2,196.54) (2,217.47)
(137.37) (341 78)
117.86 335
43,161.44 37,605.47
16,230,10 30,407.90
33,100.17 (21,513.77)
(12,534.62) 1,03,755 98
94,621.00 (7,919.62)
(5,282.35) (8,574.59)
1,26,134.30 96,155.90
282.12 (831.51)
1,26,416.42 95,324.39
(47,423.75) (29,430. 10
30.05 22.73
4,382.62 37,101.76
(1,31,693.43) (2,38,176.15)
1,31,832.69 2,53,846.88
2,159.62 2,573.81
{40,712.20) (3,861.08)
(46,041.60) (46,041.60)
34,391.06
(21,666.36) {10,240.47)
(39,940.17) (38,088.62)

(73,257.07)

(94,370.69)

12,447.15 (2,907.38)
3,503.65 6,411.03
15,950.80 3,503.65
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ESL STEEL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Notes

(Rs. in lalchs)

1. The above Statement of Cash flow has been prepared under “Indirect Method" as set out in Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows" as notified under

Companies Act, 2013

2. Ind AS 7 Cash flow statements requires the entities to provide disclosure that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes, opening and closing balances in liabilities arising
from financing activities and changes in this respect are as follows:

As at As at
Partirsitons March 31, 2023 Cash flows* Non-Cash Flows*” March 31, 2024
Non-current borrowings [Refer Note no. 20] 1,94,548.75 - (45,653.09) 1,48,895.66
Current maturities of long term debt [Refer Note no. 22] 46,041.60 (46,041.60) 46,041.60 46,041.60
Short Term Borrowings [Refer Note no. 22] - 34,391.06 34,391 06
Finance Lease Liabilities [Refer Note no. 39] 19,002.37 (21,666.36) 26,804.71 24,140.72
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings [Refer Note '
no. 24) 856.85 (856.85) 3,311.76 3,311.76 |
*Includes cash flows on account of both principal and interest.
“* Non-Cash flow changes includes Current / Non Current classification, Foreign Exchange Movement, Amortised Cost and Other Adjustments.
3. Cash and cash equivalents consists of the following for the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement:
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Balances with Banks
In Current Accounts

Fixed Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note No. 14)

15,450.80 3,503.65
500.0C
15,950.80 3,503.65

Significant accounting policies and other accompanying notes (1 to 51) form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For Lodha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

y Vg

Ashim Kumar Ghosh
Partner

Place: Kulkela

Dated: April 17, 2024

Sensitivity: Confidential (C2)

For and on behalf of the Board of Qirecfors_

A Sumathi
(DIN : 07147100)

Ashish Kumar Gupta
(DIN : 07808012)

Anand Prakash Dubey

\

it ‘1" 2
cl gy
“Non-Executive Director

i/ ) '\

Whole time Direct=-

Chief Financial Officer

Manish Kumar Chaudhary Cumpany Secieiary

M.No. ACS 23037
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ESL STEEL LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION
ESL Steel Limited (“ESL” or “the Company”) is a public limited company in India having its registered office at, Siyaljori, P.O.
logidih, O.P. Bangaria, P.S. Chandankyari, Bokaro, Jharkhand and is engaged in the manufacture and supply of Billets, TMT
Bars, Wire Rods and Ductile Iron(DI) Pipes and also deals in Iron Ore, Pig Iron and lron and Steel Scrap products generated
while or for the purpose of manufacturing these products. It also produces Metallurgical Coke, Sinter and Power for captive
consumption. The Company caters to the needs of construction, automobile, industrial machinery and equipments and water
Infrastructure development. The company is a subsidiary of Vedanta Limited.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS")
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) read with Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“che Act”). The Campany has complied with Ind As issued, notified and made effective till the date
of autharisation of the financial statements. .

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Indian Accounting Standard is initially

adopted or a revision to an existing Indian Accounting Standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in
use,

Application of new and revised standards:

Effective April 01, 2023, the company has adopted the amendments to existing Ind AS vide Companies {Indian Accounting
Standard) Amendment Rules, 2023. These amendments to the extent relevant to the company's operation include
amendments to Ind AS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” which requires the entities to disclose their material
accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies, Ind AS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors” which has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and include amendments to heip
entities to distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. Further consequential
ammendments with respect to the concept of material accounting policies were also made in ", Ind AS 107 "“Financial
Instruments: Disclosures" and Ind AS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”.

There were other amendments in various standards including Ind AS 101 "First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards", Ind AS 103 "Business Combinations, Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments " Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers”, Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes" which has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it
does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences and Ind AS 102 “Share-based
Payment” which have not been listed herein above since these were not relevant to the company.

Revision in these standards did not have any material impact on the profit/loss and earning per share for the year
Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) has not issued, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, any new
standards or made amendments to the existing standards under the said Rule, which are effective from 1st April, 2024
and applicable to the Company.

These financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors. The revision to these financial statements is

permitted by the Board of Directors after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per
provisions of the Act.

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A.

Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for

a) certain financial instruments that are measured in terms of relevant Ind AS at fair values/ amortized costs at the end of
each reporting period;

b) certain class of Property, Plant and Equipment which on the date of transition have been fair valued to be considered
as deemed costs; and

c) Defined benefit plans- Plan Assets measured at fair value

Sensitivity: Confidential (C2)




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycie
and other criteria set out in Ind AS-1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and Schedule 1ll to the Companies Act, 2013,
Having regard to the nature of business being carried out by the Company, the Company has determined its operating
cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non-current classification.

The functional currency of the Company is determined as the currency of the primary economic environment in which it
operates. The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest two
decimal lakhs except otherwise stated.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to

observe inputs employed for such measurements:

a)  Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

b)  Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly for the
asset or liability.

¢)  Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability which are not based on observable market data (unobservable data)

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair value. This includes 2

finance team headed by Chief Financial Officer who has overall responsibility for overseing all significant fair value

measurements who regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs, valuation adjustments and fair value hierarchy

under which the valuation should be classified.

B. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition, construction and subsequent improvements thereto less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. For this purpose cost includes deemed cost on the date of
transition i.e. have been fair valued to be considered as deemed costs and comprises purchase price of assets or its
construction cost including inward freight, duties and taxes (net of input tax credit availed) and other expenses incidental
to acquisition or installation and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets into the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended for its use. In addition interest on horrowing to

finance the construction of qualifying assets is capitalised as a part of the assets cost until such time the asset is ready for
it's intended use.

Parts of an item of PPE having different useful lives and material value and subsequent expenditure on PPE arising on
account of capital improvement or other factors are accounted for as separate components.

The cost of replacing part of an item of PPE is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the
future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The
costs of the day-to-day servicing of PPE are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. Assets to be
disposed off are reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

The company's leased assets (other than those dealt hereunder as Mining Assets) comprises of land, building, plant and
machinery etc and these have been seperately shown/disclosed under PPE/ Intangible Assets as Right of Use (ROU)
Assets.

Property, Plant and Equipments that are not ready for intended use as on the halance sheet date are disclosed as Capital
work in progress (CWIP). CWIP includes Project Development expenditure, equipment to be installed, construction and
erection costs, etc. Such costs are added to the related items of PPE and are classifed to the appropriate categories of
PPE when completed and ready for its intended use. Expenditure directly relatable to the implementation of the project
prior to commencement of production and stabilization thereof being for such use are classified as Project Development
Expenditure and disclosed under Capital Work-in-Progress (net of income earned during the project development stage)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

C.  LEASES

The Company’s lease assets {other than those dealt hereunder as Mining Assets) primarily consist of leases for land,
office space, transit houses, vehicles, plant and equiments, intangible assets, furnitures and fixtures etc. The Company
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i)
the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset {“ROU"} and a corresponding
lease liability where applicable for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve
months or less (short-term leases) and leases of low value assets. For these short-term and low value assets, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU
assets and lease liabilities include these options considerd for arriving at ROU and lease liabilities when it is reasonably
certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease. Direct costs incurred in this respect are
added to the said cost and lease incentives if any are deducted therefrom. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement
date on 2 straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments.The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental boarrowirg
rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment tn the related right of use asset if the Company
changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. ROU asset are separately
presented/disclosed under PPE/Intangible Assets. Lease liability obligations is presented seperately under the head
"Financial Liabilities" and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

D. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Depreciation on PPE except otherwise stated, is provided as per Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 on straight line
method over the estimated useful lives. Certain Plant and Machinery have been considered Continuous Process Plant on
the basis of technical assessment. Depreciation on upgradation cof Property, Plant and Equipment is provided over the
remaining useful life of the entire component/ PPE.
Depreciation on PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Based on above, the estimated useful
lives of assets considered for depreciation and amortisation are as follows:

| Category Useful life
|Buildings 3 to 60 years
|Roads 10 years
IPlant and machinery 3 to 40 years
lCom puter equipment 3 to 6 years
[Furniture and fixtures, Electrical Installation and Laboratory Equipments 10 Years
[Railway Sidings 15 Years
Office equipment 5 Years
Vehicles

- Motor cycles, scooters and other mopeds 10 Years

- Others 8 Years

For Buildings and Plant and Machinery, the useful life has been determined based on internal assessment and
independent evaluation carried out by technical experts. The useful life in case of remaining assets have been taken as
per Schedule Il of the Act. The company believes that the useful life as given above represents the period over which the

company expects to use the assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Pipe Moulds of 350 MM and above included under Plant and Machinery are depreciated over a period of three years.
Other such moulds are charged to consumption in the year of issue.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset.

Mining Rights capitalised as Intangible Assets are amortised on unit of production basis over total estimated remaining
commercial proved and probable mine reserve of respective mines.

Other Intangible Assets i.e. Computer Software are amortised over useful life using straight line method over a period of
3-5 years.

Machinery and Insurance Spares which can be used in connection with an item of PPE and whose use are expected (o be
irregular, are amortised over the useful life of the respective PPE.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each reporting date

E.  MINING ASSETS

Acquisition Costs

Costs associated with acquisition of lease/licenses and rights to explore, stamp duty, registration fees and other such
costs are capitalised as Mining Rights and classified under Intangible Assets. Other assets pertaining to mining operations
are capitalised under respective head of Property, Plant and Equipment. Bid premium and royalties payable with respect
to mining operations is contractual obligation for carrying out such operations and are variable in nature being linked to
the market prices of the mining produce. These are expensed and considered as cost of the mining produce as and when
related liability in this respect arises as per respective agreements/ statute

Exploration and evaluation

Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred after obtaining the mining right or the legal right to explore are
capitalised as exploration and evaluation assets (intangible assets) and stated at cost less impairment. Exploration and
evaluation assets are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of an
exploration and evaluation asset may exceed its recoverable amount.

The Company measures its exploration and evaluation assets at cost. These are classified as Property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets depending upon the nature of the assets and applies the classification consistently.
Exploration expenditure includes all direct and allocated indirect expenditure associated with finding specific mineral
resources which includes depreciation and applicable operating costs of related support equipment and facilities and
other costs of exploration activities.

Stripping cost

Developmental stripping costs in order to obtain access to quantities of mineral reserves that will be mined in future
periods are capitalised as part of mining assets. Capitalisation of developmental stripping costs ends when the
commercial production of the mineral reserves begins.

Production stripping costs are incurred to extract the ore in the form of inventories and/or to improve access 1o an
additional component of an ore body or deeper levels of material. Production stripping costs are accounted for as
inventories to the extent the benefit from production stripping activity is realised in the form of inventories.

Other production stripping cost incurred are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

The stripping cost incurred during the production phase of a surface mine is recognised as part of mining assets to the
extent the current period stripping cost exceeds the average period stripping cost over the life of mine and recognised as
an asset if such cost provides a benefit in terms of improved access to ore in future periods and certain criteria are met

Developmental stripping costs are presented along with the related mining rights and are amortised over the remaining

useful life thereof, "
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

1.

=

Site restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs.

Provision is made for costs associated with restoration and rehabilitation of mining sites as soon as the obligation to incur
such costs arises. Such restoration and closure costs which relate to the costs for removing and decommissioning
production facilities, the forecast timing of settlement of decommissioning liabilities are typical of extractive industries
and they are normally incurred at the end of the life of the mine. Such costs are estimated on the basis of mine closure
plans and the estimated discounted costs of dismantling and removing these facilities and are capitalised along with
mining assets with corresponding provisions being included under Provision for Site Restoration of Mines. The capitalised
asset is charged to profit and loss over the life of the asset through amortisation over the useful life of the respective
mine. The provision is increased in each period by unwinding the discount considered for arriving at the present value
and the same is adjusted to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Estimates made as above are based on local legislation
and/or other agreements and are reviewed periodically.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN MINING ASSETS)
Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition/deemed cost on transition date, comprising of purchase price inclusive
of taxes and duties (net of Input Credit) less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

DERECOGNITION OF TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

An item of PPE/ROU/Intangible assets is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from its use or disposal. Gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE/Intangible Assets is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Tangible, Intangible and ROU assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment. In case events and
circumstances indicate any impairment, recoverable amount of assets is determined. An impairment loss is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss, whenever the carrying amount of assets either belonging to Cash Generating Unit (CGU)
or otherwise exceeds recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of assets’ fair value less cost to disposal
and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows from the use of the assets are discounted
to their present value at appropriate rate.

Impairment losses recognized earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. Based on such assessment at each
reporting period the impairment loss is reversed and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In such cases the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities {financial instruments) are recognised when the company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. The company determines the classification of its financial assets and financial
liabilities at initial recognition based on its nature and characteristics.

The company categorizes financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending
on the ability to observe inputs employed for such measurement:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly for the
asset or liability.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

. FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initial Recognition and measurement

The financial assets include investments, trade receivable, loans and advances, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances
other than cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and other financial assets.

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or are deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets as appropriate in initial recognition. However, trade receivable that do not centain a
significant financing component are measured at transaction price.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
1.2 Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following categories:
(i) at amortised cost,
(i) at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and
(iii) at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Financial Assets at amortised cost

A ‘financial Asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if the following two conditions are met:

(i) The asset is held within a business whese objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and
{ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised Cost is determined using the Effective Interest Rate ("EIR") method. Discount or premium on acquisition and
other fees or casts forms an integral part of the EIR.

Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held both
for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, and contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest.

Financial Assets at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial Assets which does not meet the criteria of amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income
are classified as Fair Value through Profit or loss. These are recognised at fair value and changes therein are recognized in
the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss.

1.3 Derecognition
The company derecognizes a financial asset or a group of financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownersh:p of
the asset to another party. '

2. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

2.1 Initial Recognition and measurement
The financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loan and borrowings including book overdraft, derivative
financial instruments and other financial liabilities.
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or are deducted from
the fair value of the financial liabilities as appropriate in initial recognition.

2.2 Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:
(i) at amortised cost, and
(ii) at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.
When the financial liabilities are derecognised, gain or losses are recognised in profit or loss. Discount or premium on
acquisition and other fees or costs forms an integral part of the EIR.

Financial Liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial Liabilities which does not meet the criteria of amortised cost are classified as Fair Value through Profit or loss.
These are recognised at fair value and changes therein are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss

2.3 Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024
3. DERIVATIVE AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

Initial Recognition and Subsequent measurement
The company enters into derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward, swap and option contracts to
mitigate the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates in respect of financial instruments and forecasted cash flows
denominated in certain foreign currencies. The company uses hedging instruments which provide principles on the use of
such financial derivatives consistent with the risk management strategy of the company. The hedge instruments are
designated and documented as hedges and effectiveness of hedge instruments to reduce the risk associated with the
exposure being hedged is assessed and measured at inception and on an ongoing basis.
Any derivative that is either not designated as a hedge, or is 50 designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109 “Financial
Instruments”, is categorized as a financial asset/ financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs
attributable are also recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Changes in the fair value of the derivative hedging
instrument designated as a fair value hedge are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss.

Changes in the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument designated as a cash flow hedge are recognized in other
comprehensive income and presented within equity as cash flow hedging reserve to the extent that the hedge is
effective. J

Hedging instrument which no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, terminated g)r exercised,
then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and
sccumulated in equity remains therein till that time and thereafter to the extent hedge accounting being discontinued is
recognised in Statement of profit and loss. When a forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss accumulated in equity is transferred to the Statement of profit and loss.

4, OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and liabilities including derivative financial instruments are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceadie in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

5. IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if

objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset.

The company measures the |oss allowance for a financial assets at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses
if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for
that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

In case of trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the
company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

1. INVENTORIES
lnventories are valued at lower of the cost or net realizable value. Cost of inventories is ascertained on ‘weighted
average’ basis. Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below
cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.
Cost in respect of raw materials and stores and spares includes expenses incidental to procurement of the same. Costin
respect of finished and semi-finished goods represents direct and indirect cost for bringing the inventory to present
situation and condition including cost of material plus costs of conversion, comprising of labor costs and an attributable

proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal levels of activity. Cost of mining iron ore inventory includes bid
premium, royalties, other overheads and costs incurred for mining.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

By-products and scrap are valued at net realisable vaiue.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

K.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions in foreign currencies are transiated into the functional currency at the exchange rates pievailing on the date
of the transactions. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting date are translated at the reporting
date exchange rates. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency,
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction. The loss or gain thereon and also on the exchange
differences on settlement of the foreign currency transactions during the year are recognized as income or expense in
the statement of Profit and Loss account. Foreign exchange gain/loss to the extent considered as an adjustment to
Interest Cost are considered as part of borrowing cost.

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its
liabilities. Par value of the equity shares is recorded as share capital and the amount received in excess of par value is
classified as Securities Premium.

Costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from other equity, net of any tax
effects.

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised and disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements when there is a
possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or when there is a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an ocutflow of resources will be
required to settie the same or a reiiabie estimate of the amount in this respect cannot be made.

When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision or disclosure for contingent liability is made.

Contingent Assets are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statement by way of notes when inflow of economic
benefit is probable.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Employee benefits are accrued in the year in which services are rendered by the employee,

Short-term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
services are provided. Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period.

Other Long-term Employee Benefits

The cost of providing long term employee benefits consisting of leave encashment that are not expected to be settled
wholly within twelve months are measured as the present value of the expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial
gains and losses and past service cost are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the peried in
which they occur. Long term employee benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of
related obligation.
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NOQTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Post-employment Benefit Plans
The Company operates the following post employment schemes:
- Defined Benefit Plans
The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The Company's net
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by Actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The liability recognized for defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting
date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past
service costs. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets.

Premeasurements of the net defined benefit obligation, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling, are recognized in other comprehensive income.
Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings is not to be
reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

- Defined Contribution Plan

Defined contribution plans such as provident fund etc. are charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when
incurred. Contribution to Superannuation fund and National Pension Scheme, a defined contribution plan is made in
accordance with the company's policy and is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss,

0. OPERATING AND OTHER INCOME
i. REVENUE FROM SALE OF PRODUCT

Revenue from contracts with customers is accounted for only when it has commercial substance, and all the
following criteria are met:
(i) parties to the contract have approved the contract and are committed to perform their respective obligations; .
(ii) each party's rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred and payment terms there against can be
identified;
(iii) consideration in exchange for the goods or service to be transferred is collectible and determinable.

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation, when control over
the goods or services has been transferred and/or goods/ services are delivered/ provided to the customer.
Delivery accurs when the goods have been shipped ar delivered to a specific location, and the customer has either
accepted the goods under the contract or the company has sufficient evidence that all the criteria for acceptance
have been satisfied.

Revenue is measured at the amount of transaction price {consideration specified with the customers) allocated to
that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold is net of variable consideration on account of
rebates, claims and discounts, returns and value added tax. Goods and Service Tax (GST) and such other taxes
collected on behalf of third party not being economic benefits flowing to the company are excluded from revenue.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts/ right of return, using the expected value
method.

Revenue in respect of Sales contracts providing mechanism for pricing provisionally based on the price as per the
Platts Steel Markets Daily index report as specified in the contracts. In such cases, revenue is recognised at such
price on passing of cantrol of the goods to the customers. Final settlement of the price is based on the applicable
price for a specified future period. Such provisionally priced sales are marked to market at the end of the reporting
period using the relevant forward prices for the future period specified in the contract. Post transfer of control of
goods, provisional pricing features are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ rather than
Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts with customers' and therefore the Ind AS 115 rules on variable consideration
do not apply. Differential arising with respect to the final settlement and those an mark to market basis with
respect to such sales are considered as provisional pricing adjustment and included in the revenue from operations
and disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements.

Discount as estimated based on expected sales volume or otherwise is deducted from Revenue from Operations.
Past experience is used to estimate the discounts, using the most likely method and revenue is recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

ii. INTEREST, DIVIDEND AND CLAIMS
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Interest has been accounted using
effective interest rate method. Insurance claims/ other claims are accounted as and when admitted / settled.

ini. EXPORT BENEFITS
Export incentives are accounted for in the year of export if the entitlements and realisability thereof can be
estimated with reasonable accuracy and conditions precedent to such benefit is fulfilled.

P. BORROWING COST
Borrowing cost comprises of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of the funds. All
borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method except to the
extent attributable to qualifying Property Plant Equipment (PPE), minining assets or other intangible assets which are
capitalized to the cost of the related assets. A qualifying asset is an asset, that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent considered
as an adjustment o the borrowing costs.

Q. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development cost (other than cost of fixed assets acquired) are charged as an expense in the year in which
they are incurred.

R. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognized on systematic basis when there is reasonable certainty of realization of the same.
Revenue grants including subsidy/rebates are credited to Statement of Profit and Loss Account under “Other Operating
Income” or deducted from the related expenses for the period to which these are related. Grants which are meant for
purchase, construction or otherwise in relation to non current assets are recognized as Deferred Income and disclosed
under Non Current Liabilities and transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of
the respective asset. Grants relating to non-depreciable assets is transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss over the
periods specified for meeting the obligations related to such grants.

S.  TAXES ON INCOME
Income tax expense representing the sum of current tax expenses and Lthe net charge of the deferred taxes is recognized
in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other
comprehensive income.
Current income tax is provided on the taxable income and recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered
from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all
deductible temporary differences with respect to carry forward of any unused tax losses/depreciation to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the Company has a legally enfarceable right to offset and intends rither to settle on a net basis, or ta realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilized.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

15

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to the equity holders of the company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed
by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could
have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are identified and reported taking into account the different risk and return, organisation structure
and the internal reporting provided to the chief-operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
Segment manager who allocates resources and assess the operating activities, financial results, farecasts, or plans for the
segment.

BUYERS' CREDIT/ SUPPLIER'S' CREDIT AND VENDOR FINANCING

The Company enters into arrangements whereby banks and financial institutions make direct payments to suppliers for
raw materials, services and project materials. The banks and financial institutions are subsequently repaid by the
Company at a later date. These are generally settled within twelve months for raw materials/ services and within 36
months for the project materials. Where these arrangements are with a maturity of up to twelve months, the economic
substance of the transaction is determined to be operating in nature and these are recognised as operational buyers’
credit/ suppliers' credit and disclosed on the face of the balance sheet. Payments made to vendors are treated as cash
item and disclosed as cash flows from operating/ investing activity depending on the nature of the underlying
transaction. Where such arrangements are with a maturity beyond twelve months and up o thirty six months, the
economic substance of the transaction is determined to be financing in nature, and these are presented within
borrowings in the balance sheet.

Interest expense on these are reccgnised in the finance cost. Payments made by banks and financial institutions to the
operating vendors are treated as a non-cash item and settlement of operational buyer’s credit/ suppliers’ credit by the
Company is treated as cash flows from operating activity reflecting the subtsance of the payment. Settiement of dues to
banks and financial institution are treated as cash flows from financing activity.

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ASSUMPTIONS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION AND UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the measurement principle of Ind AS requires
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate
changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates.
Differences between the actual resuits and estimates are recognized in the year in which the resulls are known /
materialized and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Application of accounting policies that require significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments and the
use of assumptions in the financial statements have been disclosed below. The notes provide an overview of the areas
that involved a high degree of judgement or complexity and of items which are likely to be materially adjusted due to
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of
these estimates and judgements is included in relevant note together with information about basis of calculation of each
affected line item in the financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation/assumptions at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities and related revenue impact within the next financial year are discussed below:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

a)

b)

c)

d)

Depreciation / amortisation of and impairment on Property, Plant and Equipment / Intangible/ ROU Assets.

Property, plant and equipment, ROU and intangible assets are depreciated/amortized over the estimated useful
lives in accordance with Internal assessment and Independent evaluation carried out by technical expert/ Schedule
Il of the Companies Act, 2013 and estimate for proven and probable mineral reserve, taking into account the
estimated residual value, wherever applicable.

The company reviews its carrying value of its Tangible, ROU and Intangible Assets whenever there is objective
evidence that the assets are impaired. The required level of impairment losses to be made is estimated by
reference to the estimated value in use or recoverable amount. In such situation Assets' recoverable amount is
estimated which is higher of asset's or cash generating units (CGU) fair value less cost of disposal and its value in
use. In assessing value in use the estimated future cash flows are discounted using pre-tax discount rate which
reflect the current assessment of time value of money. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market
realisations are considered or otherwise in absence of such transactions appropriate valuations are adopted. The
Company reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation / amortization and amount of impairment expense to be recorded during any reporting period This
reassessmertt may result in variation in the amount of depreciation and amortisation in future period.

In earlier years, the company determined the recoverable amount of the CGU based on the transaction price in
terms of approved resolution plan and impairment with respect to carrying value of the assets was provided. This
has been reviewed based on the assumptions and adjustments for forecasts wich may vary subsequently requiring
adjustment as and when ascertained. According to such review, no further adjustment in the carrying value thereof
has been considered essential. As at March 31, 2024, the carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment,
Intangible assets and Capital Work in Progress is Rs. 6,55,895.68 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 6,25,264.63 lakhs)

Arrangement contain leases and classification of leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any
option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an
assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably
certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the
Company considers factars such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs
relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to the company's operations
taking into account among other thing, the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable
alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current
economic circumstances.

Impairment allowances on trade receivables

The Company evaluates whether there is any objective evidence that trade receivables are impaired and
determines the amount of impairment allowances as a result of the inability of the customer to make required
payments. The Company bases the estimates on the ageing of the trade receivables balance, credit-worthiness of
the trade receivables and historical write-off experience. In case of variation in financial conditions of the trade
receivable the amount of impairment as recognised may vary having a significant impact on the Financial
Statement,

Income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determination of taxability of certain income and deductibility of certain
expenses during the estimation of the provision for income taxes. Also there are many transactions and
assumptions during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Further
judgement is involved in determining the deferred tax position on the balance sheet date.

The Company has significant amount of unused business and depreciation losses. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets (DTA) that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing for utilisation thereof against taxable profit together with future tax planning strategies. The
management has reviewed the rationale for continuing recognition of DTA recognised in earlier years based an the
likely timing and level of profitability in future and expected utilisation of deferred tax thereagainst. Accordingly, Rs.
30,900.92 lakhs has been reversed during the year and remaining amount recognised in earlier year has been
continued to be carried forward for future period and Rs. 82,195.51 lakhs representing business losses and
depreciation has not been recognised. Since these are based on assumptions and projections and thereby are
inherently uncertain. The amount of DTA may vary in subsequent period depending upon then prevailing
conditions, circumstanggs and profitability
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

e)

f)

Bl

Going Concern assumption

Asindicated in Note no. 44 of the financia! statements, Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate Change {MoEF)
has revoked the stage | Forest clearance granted earlier and thereby the company has made representation for
reconsideration of the same and grant of time for ensuring expedious action for compliances as substantial
progress have been made in identification and procurement of forest land. Further, despite constraints in meeting
long term funding requirements for want of CTC and losses incurred by the company, the net worth of the
company is positive. Even though there is uncertainity in this respect as on this date and considering that effective
steps including procurement and transfer of land to the forest department currently being undertaken for obtaining
required clearances, considering the direction of Hon’ble Supreme Court allowing the continuation of the
operations of the company and continued support by the Holding company for meeting company's funding and
other requirements, the accounts of the company have been continued to be prepared on going concern basis. In
the event of the assumption for going concern not turning out to be true in subsequent period, the same may have
significant impact on the financial statement of the company.

Mining Rights and Assets
Mine Reserve and Site restoration Cost

Reserves considered for computing acquisition costs, stripping cost, costs as part of mining activity, exploration and
evaluation cost are reassessed at least annually. Moreover, changes in reserves as a3 result ¢f chang
management assumptions could impact the amortisation rates and the carrying value of assets. Provision for site
restoration are estimated based on available information, taking into account applicable local legal requirements,
mining plans, data base based on survey report, current prices and discount rates. Significant technical and
commercial judgements are required to determine the Company’s estimate for iron ore reserves and provision for

site restoration. All assumptions are reviewed annualy and variations are accounted for accordingly.

n

Commitment under MDPA arrangement

In terms of the Mine development and production agreement (‘MDPA’) signed with respect to two mine blocks the
Company is required to fulfil certain minimum production quantities each year from commencement of mining
lease. In the event the Company is unable to fulfil the required minimum production quantities, it would be liable to
pay penalty, as prescribed in the MDPA.

Based on management's evaluation of mining plan submitted and also as referred to in Note no. 40(A)(d), the
accounts have been prepared on the assumption that there will not be any shortfall with respect to minimum
quantity stipulated for production as required under MDPA.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

The present value of the defined benefit obligations and long term employee benefits depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ based on actual developments in future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, inflation, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and being long-term in nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual
defined benefit expenses. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

h)

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow
of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The
timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and
circumstances, which can be subject to change.

Management uses in-house and external legal professional to make judgment for estimating the possible outflow of
resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations/ against the Company as it is not possible to predict
the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

In accordance with ARP, contingent lizbilities prior to the effective date of NCLT Order nave been extinguished
which has been further substantiated based on various judicial pronouncements including those of Hen'ble
Supreme Court of India. The said order of Hon'ble Supreme Court has been submitted to various judicial authorities
for disposal of the same and accordingly the same has not been disclosed in the financial statements. Althaugh
there can be no assurance with regard to final outcome of the legal proceeding, the company does not expect to
have an adverse impact in this respect.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)
8 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Particulars iy Asat
Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{a) Security Deposits
Considered good 685.82 528.14
Considered doubtful 190 67.27
Less: Impairment Allowance for doubtful deposit (1.90) (67.27)
{b) Fixed Deposits with Banks (having original maturity of more than 12 months} 15.2 8,853.84 8,792.40
() Interest receivable on fixed deposits 15.2 2.76 3.08
9,542.42 9,323.62
2.1 Movement of Impairment Aliowances for doubtful deposits For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 67.27 63.91
Recognised during the year 150 336
Reversal during the year (67.27) : -
Balance at the end of Lthe year 1.90 67.27
9 NON-CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
Particulars Afat o
Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 Wiarch 31, 2023
Advance Income Tax including Tax deducted at source 2,179.45 2,461.57
2,175.45 2,461.57
10 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars hsat Amal
Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{a) Capital advances 712610 ?.‘_834‘83
{b) Prepaid Expenses 99.09 74.23
7,225.19 2,909.06
11 INVENTORIES
Particulars i Asal
Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 4
(a) Raw Materials 14,112.23 33,809.35
(b} Raw Materials in transit 6,123.72 7,118.713
{c) Semi Finised Goods/ Work In Progress 52.191.87 58,717.30
(d) Finished Goods 3,334.49 3,594.87
(e} Finished Goods in transit 117.23 12025
{f) Slares and Spares 111 21,835.96 19,688 74
Less: Provision for Obsolete and Non-moving Stores and Spares 11.2 {3,267.97) (3.563.33)
() Stores and Spare Parts in transit 1,622.22 1,663.25
Less: Provision for Obsolete and Non-maving Stores and Spares 11.2 {45.80) (45.15)
(h) scrap and By Products 10,315.19 12,335.33
1,06,339.14 1,39,439.34

11.1 Stores and Spares stock includes stock of DI Pipe Mould of size 350 mm and above amounting to Rs 1,516.06 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 323.28 lakhs).
11.2 The Company has a palicy of provisions against obsolete and non-moving stores and spares which are lying unmoved for a period above two years. The movement in
provisions are as follows:

For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,608.48 4,316.64
Recupnised during the year - =
Reversal during the year (294.71) (708.16}
Balance at the end of the year 3,313.77 3,608.48
11.3 Also refer Note no. 43 in respect of charge created against borrowings
12 INVESTMENTS
Particulars s Azt
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 .
Investments measured at fair value through Profit and Loss Units Amount Units Amount

Investment in Mutual Funds (unquoted)
(a) Aditya Birla Sunlife Liquid Fund- Regular Growth Plan (Face Value:

Rs. 100) ’ ’ 2,75.915.11 1,001 80
() Aditya Birla Sunlife Overnight Fund- Direct Plan - Growth Option

(Face Value: Rs. 100) NSRS 2,001i50 s

(¢) ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund- Direct Plan- Growth Oplion (Face

Value: Rs. 100) ) : 3,00,610.72 1,001.59
= 2,001.50 2,003.39
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)

12.1 Aggregate smount of Investment in Mutual Funds 2,001L.50 2.003.39
12.2 Aggregate amount of NAV of Investment in Mutual Funds 2,001.50 2,003.39
12.3 Particulars of Investments as required under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 have been disclosed herein above.
12.4 Also refer Note no. 43 in respect of charge created against borrowings
13 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Particulars As Bt fsat
Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured
Considered good 131 11,047.63 24,615.97
Comsideied good, having significant increase in Credit Risk 131 22,65 246.98
Credit Impaired 131 54.3C 70.37
Less: Impairment Allowance for doubtiul debts 13.2 {54.30) {70.37}
11,070.28 24,862.95
13.1 Trade Receivables ageing schedule based on the due date for payment there against are as follows: Asat | As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good
Within Lhe credil period 9,250.03 14,504.81
Less than 6 Months 1,497.93 9,833.84
6 months - 1 Year 80.69 16562
1-2 Years 10332 80.42
2-3 years 79.62 19.17
More than 3 years 36.04 12.11
11,047.63 24,615.97
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Significant increase in Credit Risk
6 months - 1 Year 15.08 19113
1-2 Years 2.57 55.85
2-3 years 500 5
22.65 246.98
Disputed Trade Receivables- Credit impaired
Less than 6 Months -
6 months - 1 Year
1-2 Years - 6.12
2-3years 6.12
Mare than 3 years 48.18 53.75
54.30 7037
13.2 Movement of Impairment Allowances for doubtful debts For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 70.37 11253
Recognised during the yeor -
Reversal during th2 year (16.07) a3 16)
Balance at the end of the year 54,30 70.37
13.3 Also refer Note no. 43 in respect of charge created against borrowings
14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Particulars bast Asat
Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{a) Balances with Banks:
In Current Accounts 15,450.80 3,503.65
(b) Fixed Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 500.00 -
» 15,550.80 3,303.65
14.1 Alsa refer Note no. 43 in respect of charge created apainst borrowings
15 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
a As at As at
Particulars
Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fixed Deposits with Banks [having original maturity of more than 3 months) 15.1and 15.2 11,397.04 15,841.10
11,397.04 15,841.10

15.1 Refer Note no. 43 in respect of charge created against borrowings

15.2 Fixed Deposits with banks includes:

a) Rs.20,048.95 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs.23,974.52 lakhs) (including Rs.8,844.80 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs.8,780.54 Lakns) disclosed under other non-current assets) whicn
have been lodged with bank as margin money against Letter of Credit/Bank Guarantees/OD facilities issued/granted by them; and

b) Rs.201.93 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs.658.98 lakhs) (including Rs.5.04 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs.11.86 lakhs) disclosed under other non-current assets) lying with
Customers/ Vendors/ Government Authorities in term of agreement/orders.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

16

17

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Particulars

(a) Earnest Money/ Securily Depoils lo Vendors

Considered good

Considered Doubtful

Less: Impairment Allowance for doubtful deposits
(b) Interest receivable
4] Export incentive receivables
(d) Insurance Claim Receivable

(e) Other Deposits
15.1 viovement of inpairment Allowances for doubtiul Debls and Deposits

Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year
Recognised during the yedr
Reversal during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Refer Note No.

16.1

16.2

Ag at

March 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)

As 2t
March 3%, 2023

923.16 1,115.08
7.70 4358
(7.70) (43 G8)
38.74 6.22
126.50 76.81
- 293.09
1,548.71 -
2,637.11 1,491.20

For the Year ended
March 31, 2024

For the Year ended
March 31, 2023

43.68 10138
7.70 .
(43.68) (57.70)
7.70 43.68

16.2 Rs.1,548.71 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Nil) has been deposited in compliance of the direction of the Hon'ble Jharkhand High Court in respect of award given in favor of a
vendor pertaining to the period prior to June 04, 2018. The company has however liled an SLP belore Hon'ble Supreme Court of India against the award of West Bengal
Micro Small Enterprise Facilitator Council (WBMSEFC) and the matter is pending as on this date. (Refer sub-note in Note no. 40)

16.3 Refer Note no. 43 in respect of charge created against borrowings

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars

Refer Note No.

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

(2} Balance with Government Authorities
Considered good 173 9,268.78 1,697.70
Cansidered doubtful 178.38
Less: Impairment Allowance far doubtful balances 17.1 - (178 38}
(b} Advances for supply of goods and services '
Considered good 17.4 15,247.32 27,156.31
Considered doubtful 129.47 275.25
Less: Impairment Allowance for doubtful balances 171 (129.47) 1275.25)
(e} Prepaid Expenses 17.2 8,372.58 7,015.29
(d) Advances against salaries 43,97 14.22
{e) Others- GST Clearing accounts, LTIP 527.02 705.61
33,459.67 42,589.13

17.1 Movement of Impairment Allowances for doubtful balances:

For the Year ended

for the Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 453.63 1,235.95
Recognised during the year 108.26 -
Reversal during the vear 1432.42) {782 32|
Balance at the end of the year 129.47 453.63

17.2 Includes amount paid to related parties against Brand Fees for the financial year 2023-2024 (Refer Note no 38)

17.3 includes

a) Rs.1,288.43 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs.1,288.43 lakhs) related to Input Tax Credit on burnaut based on the order of Hon'ble Supreme Court of India,

b} Rs,525.57 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs.525.57 lakhs) lying as deposit paid under pratest against various judicial authoritles in terms of the respective Orders; and

¢) Rs.6,037.39 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs.3,516.22 lakhs) being differential amount of electricity duty charged against which a writ petition has been filed at Hon'ole High
Court of Jharkhand stating that amendment made pursuant to Jharkhand Flectricity Duty (Amendment} Act, 2021, for enhancing the duly are wilra vires the provision of
Bihar Electricity Duty Act, 1948 as well as Articles 14, 19(1)(g) and 265 of the Constitution of India.

17.4 Includes Rs. 4,470.50 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 13,513.58 lakhs) lying with vendors under cash and carry arrangement against supply of imported coal over the
specified period af ume.

17.5 Refer Note no. 43 in respect of change created against borrowings

18 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars AEaL il
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Authorised:
10,02,00,00,000 (March 31, 2023: 10,02,00,00,000) Fquity Shares of Rs, 10/ each 10,02,000.00 10,02,000.00
10,02,000.00 10,02,000.00
(b) Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up:
1,84,90,30,224 (March 31, 2023: 1,84,90,30,224) Equnty Shares of Rs. 10/- cach 1,84,903.02 1.84.903 02
1,84,903.02 1,84,903.02

¢
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)
18.1 Reconciliation of the number of Equity Shares Qutstanding:
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of shares as at the beginning 1,84,90,30,224 1,84,90,30,224
Changes during the year - -
No. of shares as at the end 1,84,90,30,224 1,84,90,30,224
18.2 Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares Equily Shares:
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Name of Shareholder Nos % holding Nos % holding
Vedanta Limited 1,76,55,53,040 95.49% 1,76,55,53,040 95 19%

18.3 The Company has one class of shares referred to as Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 10/ . Each Holder of Equity Shares is entitied to one vote per share. in the
event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive assets of the Company remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts, in
proportion of their sharcholding.

19 OTHER EQUITY

Particulars s S
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Capital Reserve 19.1
As per last Balance Sheet 9,59,908.68 9,59,908.68
b) Capital Reserve on Amalgamation 19.1
As per last Balance Sheet [1,74,593.58) (1,74,593.58)
(e) Securities Premium 18.2
As per last Balance Sheet 1,79,036.44 1,79,036.44
(d) Retained Earnings 193
As per last Balance Sheel (5,92,548.13) (5,35,181.73)
Profit/(Loss) for the Year (98,756.82) *(55.790.59)
Transfer [rom Other Comprehensive Income {81.25) {275.81)
16,88,386.2C} (5,52,520.23)
(e) Other Comprehensive income
Re-measurement of defined benefit plan
As per last Balance Sheet - -
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (81.25) [275.81)
Transfer to Retained Earnings 81.25 275.81
2,74,965.34 3,71,803.41

19.1 Capital Reserve
A) Capital Reserve includes:
a) Rs, 9,61,219.97 lakhs recognised on Consolidation and Reduction of Equity Share Capital of the Company on Jun 14, 2018 in terms of Hon'ble NCLT Order dated
April 17, 2018.
b} Further on amalgamation of erstwhile VSL with the company with effect from October 01, 2018:
1) Differential of Rs. 519.85 lakhs arising on cancellation of equity shares acquired by erstwhile VSL pursuant ta "Exit Offer” with respect 1o tace value thereaf ang
ii)Differential of Rs. 1,831.14 lakhs with respect to the cost of investment in the books of V5L and face value thereof were adjusted to Capital Ruserve

8) Capital Reserve on Amalgamation represents the excess of consideration paid i.e. equity shares issued with respect Lo net assets and resérves sequired consequent

to amalgamation of erstwhile VSL with the company.

19.2 Securities Premium
Securities Premium represents the amount received in excess of par value of securities and is available for utilisation as specified under Section 52 of Companies Act,
2013,

15.3 Relained Earnings
Retained earnings represents the amount of accumulated earnings/losses of the company. This includes Other Comprehensive Income of (Rs B04. 17 laxhs) (March
31, 2023: (Rs. 722.92 lakhs)) refating to remeasurement of definea benefit plans (net of tax) which cannot be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Lo ss

19.4 Other Comprehensive Income
This includes gain/losses on defined benefit ohligations which is transferred to retained earnings as stated in Note 19 3 above.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

IRs. in lakhs)
20 BORROWINGS
. As ot A a1
Particulars Refer Nate No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Secured Borrowings
(a) From Banks:
- Term Loan 20.1,202,and 20.3 1,84,220 46 2,22,351.95
Total (a) 1,84,220.16 2,27,351.95
Unsecured Borrowings
(a) Inter-Corporate Deposits from Holding Company 20.2and 20.3 10,716.80 13,238.40
10,716.80 13,238.40
Less: Disclosed under Current Maturity of Long Term Debt- Unsecured 22 12,521.60) {2,221.60}
Less: Disclosed under Current Maturity of Long Term Debt- Secured 22 (43,520.00) (43.520.00)
1,48,895.66 1,94,548.75

20.1 Security *
Term Loan from banks is secured by:
a) First ranking pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all fixed assets of the Borrower, including the bank accounts and the bank baldnces earmarked against
the Interest Service Reserve Account and amounts lying therein:
b} First ranking pari passu charge by deed of Hypathecation on November 28, 2018 and October 08, 2021 in favour of Vistra ITCL (India) Limited, security tustees by
way of deposit of 1,993.35 acres and 264.45 acres respectively of title deed of mortgageable lands.
¢} Corporate Guarantee, in favour of the Security Trustee for the benefit of the Lenders in form and substance satisfactory to the Security Trustee These shall be
collectively referred to as the "Securnity”; and
d) Negative Pledge over shares of the company ie. post merger, Guarantor (M/s Vedanta Ltd.) to hold 76% of the shares of the company and Non Bispesal
Undertaking of these shares in favour of the Security Trustee acting for the Lenders.

20.2  The interest rate for the above loans ranges from 8.22% to 10.70%.

203  Repayment terms:

Year Inter-Corporate
Term Loan from  Deposit fram Holding

Banks " Company

2024-2025 43,520.00 2,521.60
2025-2026 4352000 2,821.80
2026-2027 43,520.00 2,521.60
2027-2028 43,520.00 2,521 60
2028-2029 10,140.46 G30.40

20.4 The amount disclosed herein above represents the amortised cost in accordance with Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments”.

21 PROVISIONS

Particulars Ay Azst
Refer Note No, March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Provision for Employee Benefits 321 1,469.95 1,096.28
(o} Provision for Compliance Cost for EC 2i.1snd 213 20,556.58 26,556.53
{c) Provision for Site Restoration for Mines 21.2and 21.3 307.46 284.73
22,333.99 21,931.59

211 Provision for compliance cost for EC represents cost to be incurred being estimated cost of compensation elc., for forest area diversion, wild lite development and
green beit conservation and other concerns raised on public hearing for granting EC based on the report of EIA consultant appointed in terms of TOR as detailed n
Note no. 44,

Provision for site restoration for mines relates to compensatory afforestation, mine closure and rehabilitation obligations. These amounts have been computed
based on the Mining Plan submitted o the authorily and will be incurred on closure of the mines over a period of 1 to 5 years. The cost o be incurred for Mine
Closure Plan in terms of the Mining Regulation based on evaluation carried out by an Independent Professional in the previous year based on the present value of
such cost to be incurred over the period specified as above has been varried forward in these accounts.

"~
-
~

213 Movement of the Provisions arc as follows:

Provision for Compliance Cost for EC Provision for Site Restoration for Mines
Particulars For the Year ended  For the Year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 20,5506.58 22,030.57 284.73 106.99
Recognised during the year . - - 164.23
Finance cost unwinding . 22.73 1351
Written back/paid during the year - (1,473.99) - =
Balance at the end of the year 20,556.58 20,556.58 307.46 284.73
-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)
22 BORROWINGS
Eaticalins Refer Note No. As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Secured Borrowings
Working Capital facilities from banks 223 6,391.06 -
Currenl maturities of long-term debts- Secured 20 43,520.00 4352000
Unsecured Borrowings
Inter-Corporate Deposits from Holding Company 222 28,000.00 -
Current maturities of long-term debts 20 2,521.60 2,521.60
80,432.66 46,041.60

221  The company has availed borrowings {both fund and non-fund based) from banks on the basis of securily of current assets. The quarterly return or statements of
current assets as submitted except for the month of March 2024 which is yet to be filed are in agreement with the books of accounts

22.2  The company has obtained various short term facilities from the Holding Company to mecet its funding requirement for compliance with respect to CTO and
aperations currently being undertaken as per the support letter approved by the Holding Company. Such facilities are unsecured fixed interest bearing

22,3 Refer Note no. 43 in respect of security against waorking capital tacilities

23 TRADE PAYABLES

. As al As at
Particulars
Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Payahie for paods and services
Oue o Micro and Small Enterprises 231 7,883.23 6,508.12
Others 57,335.35 60,892.72
65,218.58 67,400.84

_—
23.1 Disclosure of Trade payables as required under section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006, based on the confirmation and
information available with the company regarding the status of suppliers.

Particulars Asal As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Principal amount remaining unpaid but not due as at year end 7,883.23 6,508.12

b) Interest amount remaining unpaid but not due as at year end

¢) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

d) Interest due and payable for the period of aeiay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed .
) Interest acerued and remaining unpaid as at year end 143.45
f) Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as -

23.2 Trade Payable ageing schedule based on the outstanding based on the period from the date of the transaction are as follows:

As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Undisputed - Non MSME
Less than 1 year 42,025.97 59,215.84
1-2 years 14,365.59 1,533.49
2-3 years 936.51 9421
More than 3 years 3.28 31.66
57,335.35 60,875.20
Undisputed - MSME
Less than 1 year 7,420.89 6.,152.43
1-2 years 357.18 320.71
2 3years 95.18 3498
Maore than 3 years 3.98 -
7,883.23 §,508.12
Disputed - Non MSME
Less than 1 year . 173
1-2 years - 15.79
2-3 years
More than 3 years
. 12.52
65,218.58 67,400.84
23.3 Unbilled amount included above being less than 1 year are as follows:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Undisputed - Non MSME 4,199.71 16,622.14
Disputed - Non MSME - 0.58
Undisputed - MSME 2410.24 1.523.96
Disputed - Non MSME - -
6,609.95 18,146.68

-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
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(Rs. in talths)
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
4 As at As at
kardlcailats Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 20 3,311.76 B56.85
(b) Earnest Money Deposit/ Security Deposit Customer 1,813.42 1,550.53
(c) Capital Vendors 16,189.74 §,501.98
(d) Derivative Instrument Liability at fair value through profit and loss (net] 46{d)(iii) 15.24 282.79
(e) Others Payables
- Employees payable 2,881.26 1,42097
- Dthers 441.07 459.29
24,652,49 13,072.41
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Particulars st fem
Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{a) Advance from customers 25.1 1,06,073.73 25,210.59
(b) Statutory Dues Payables 62,647.66 » 52,696.82
(includes Royalty on Iron Ore mines, Provident Fund, GST, Tax deducted at source etc.) 1,68,721.39 77,907.41

25.1 includes Interest beasing advance of Rs. 86,822.55 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 10,216.16 Jakhs) received from holding company in terms of Agreement for Sale of jron
Ore 1o be adjusted against shipment made thereagainst or on expiration of the contract along with interast at SBI 1Y MCLR+0.20 calculated on the autstanding balancr,

PROVISIONS
Particulars s o
Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
provision for Employee Benefits 32 166.28 189.64
Other Provisions 26.1 = -
166.28 189.04

26.1 Other Provisions represent amount provided in respect of defined contribution for employee benefit including for contractual workmen pursuant to the Order of
Hon'ble Supreme Court being ne longer required and written back during the previous year. Movement of such Provisions are as follows:

As at - As at

Particulars Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year - 953.83
Recognised during the year 3

Written back during the year - (953.83)

Balance at the end of the year B R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
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28

29

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Particulars

Sale of Products:

Finished and Semi-Finised Products:
- Export Sales

- Domestic Sales

27.1 Disclosure as per Ind AS 115:
Disaggregate Revenue

Refer Note No.

The break up with respect to type of revenue stream of the Company are as follows:

Particulars

Within India
- Billets
- TMT barts
- Wire rods
- D! pipes
- PIG iron
- Iron Ore
- Oihers

Qutside India
- Billets
- TMT bars
Wire rods
- Dl pipes
- PIG Iron
- Iron Ore
- Others

For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024

For the Year ended

(Rs. in lakhs)

For the Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
22,180.63 38,118.22
8,07,862.58 7,47,062.82
8,30,046.22 7.85,181.04

For the Year ended

For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Government Non-Government =

- - 12,320.57 2.921.32
9,870.02 20,340.81 2,50,607.48 2,38,502:75
- « 2,16,987.57 2,27,746.92
8,824.67 669.92 1,38.349.45 1,25,615.32
x - 80,534.08 85,857.95

- 90,368.74 40,180 .14

- . 20,547.34 12,7u6.00

T L . 1,677.37

- - 24948 90.42
6,553.08 4,683.03

- - 942.04 2292

- 14,436.03 31,435.48

18,691.6¢ 21,010.73 8,31,895.85 : 2,75,650.68

27.2 Revenue from sale of products for the year ended March 31, 2024 includes revenue from contracts with customers of Rs. Rs. 61,145.07 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Re. 2,258.97 lakhs)
based en provisional pricing and pricing adjustments (net} of Rs. 4,706.68 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Nil} arising on account of gains/ losses on final settiement of such provisionally priced

sales contracts and on mark to market basis at the end of the year.

27.3 Majornity of the Company’s sales are against advance or are against letters of credit/ cash against documents/ guarantees of banks of national standing. Where sales are made on
credit, the amount of consideration does not contain any significant financing component as payment terms are within three months. As per the terms of the contract w.th ity
customers, either all performance obligations are to be completed within one year from the date of such contracts or the Company has a right to receive consideration from its
customers for all completed performance obligations. Accordingly, the Company has availed the practical expedient under paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and has not piven the

additional disclosures with respect to performance obligations that remained unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at the balance sheet date

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Particulars

Scrap/ By-products and Others
Incentive on Exports

OTHER INCOME

Particulars

Refer Note No.

(a) Interest income on Fixed deposits, Security Deposits, overdue debts etc. measured at amortised

o8

(b) Interest incame on financial assets measured at amortised cost
{c) Sundry Credit balances/Provision na longer required written back
(d) Net Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation

{e) Net gain on Derivative Instruments on fair valuation through profit and loss
(f) Net Gain on Current investments at Fair Value through profit and loss

(gl Miscellaneous Income

For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
20,544,323 12,480.37
221.23 96.51
20,765.56 12.57:_&&

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2,191.81 2,088.44
4.73 129.03
7,019.29 2,506.72
431.11
132.21
137.37 341.78
1,135.62 2,404.25
11,052.14 7,4%0.22 "

29.1 Includes old balances of certain suppliers/service providers/Trade Receivables/ clearing accounts being no longer payable on reconciliation have been wrtten back duning the

year
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. In lakhs)
30 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
particulars For the Year ended For the Year gnded-
Refer Note No. March 31, 20624 March 31, 2023
Raw material and other materials consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year 40,928.08 57.642.97
Add; Purchases and other related costs 4,17,906.46 4,85,571.35
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 20,235.95 40,928.08
30.1 4,38,598.59 5,02,292.24
30.1 Based on the physical verification of Inventories carried out by an Independent professionals and on reconciliation with book stock, the varation thereof [Increase/|Decrease))
have been adjusted to the Cost of Material consumed/ Changes in Inventories of Finished/ Semi-Finished Goods and Stock-in-Trade. This also includes adjustments arising on heap
clearences of material;
For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cost of Material consumed
Increase/(Decrease) in Stack of Raw Material {4,316.23) {3,215.21)
Changes in Inventories of Finished/ Semi-Finished Goods and Stock-in-Trade
Increase/|Decrease) in Stock of Finished Goods - 3
Increase/(Decrease) in Stock of Semi-Finished Goods (2,786.79) (745.95)
Increase/{Decrease) in Stock of Scrap/ By-products 2,310.54 1,988.83
(4,792.48) {1,972.33)
30.2 Cost of material consumed represents procurement from external sources and cost incurred for own generation/raising etc. remain included under respective nead of accounts
31 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED/ SEMI-FINISHED GOODS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
: For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars . 3
Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31; 2023
(i} Inventories at the end of the year
(a) Finished Goods 3,451.72 9 715.12
{b) Semi-Finished Goods 52,191.87 717,30
{c) Scrap / By-products 10,315.19 *-.335 33
65,958.78 £ 80.767.75
(ii) Inventories at the beginning of the year o
(a) Finished Goods 9,715.12 2,798.62
(b} Semi-Finished Goods 58,717.30 30,577.35
(c) Scrap / By-products 12,335.33 6,849.50
80,767.75 40,225.47
313 14,808.97 (40,542.28)
31.1 Also Refer Note no. 30.1 for adjustments carried out on reconciliation of physical stock with book stock.
31.2 Disclosures as required under Ind AS 2 “Inventories” are as fallows:
For the Year ended Far the Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Reversal/ Write-down in value of Inventories 615.41
a) Inventories recognised as expense 8,20,600.12 7,58,178.12
32 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
v For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars
Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{a) Salaries and wages 21,140.09 19667327
(b) Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 1,082.8C 1,0:2.75
{c) Staff welfare expenses 1,236.66 G614
(d) Less: Transferred to Capital Work in Progress 62 (869.94)
22,589.61 21,326.21
32,1 The Shareholders vide their crdinary resolution dated September 28, 2023 had approved the remuneration paid/ payable to the Wholetime Director amounting to fs 346.41 lakhs
Due to inadequacy of profit during the year, such remuneration has exceeded the limit specified in Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V by Rs. 64.47 lakhs. However, till June
04, 2023, the company was cavered under exemption of the aforesaid provisions according to Section Ili (b) (iii) of Schedule V for a period of 5 years from the date of NCLT approval as
the company was acquired by Vedanta Limited through Reselution Plan approved by Hon'ble NCLT. Further pursuant to provisions of Section 197 {9) and Section 197 (10) of the
Companies Act 2013 in case remuneration already paid to the managerial personnel exceeds the needs limit specified, the same needs to be ratified by the shareholders by passing a
Special Resolution within 2 years of making excess payment which is being taken up in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
32.2 POST RETIREMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

I

The disclosures required under Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefits”, are given below:

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company makes contributions to Provident Fund, Superannuation and Pension Scheme for eligible employees. Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute 2
specified percentage/fixed amount of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions as specified under the law are paid to the respectiva fund set up by the government
authority. Contributions towards provident funds are recognised as an expense for the year. Both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the Funds at

specified percentage of the employee's salary and aggregate contributions along with interest thereon are paid to the employees/nominees at retirement, death or cessation of
employment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

()

{1

(Rs. in lalhs)

Contributions to Defined Contribution Plans, recognized for the year are as under:
For the Year ended
March 31, 2023

For the Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024

Employer’s Contribution to Provident fund 518.83 43830
Employer's Contribution to Pension Scheme 13333 213.87
Employer's Contribution te Superannuation Scheme 45.68 7407
Employer’s Contribution to National Pension Scheme 80.21 54,80

Post Employment Defined Benefit Plans:

The Post Employment defined benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based on independent actuarial valuation using the Projected
Unit Credit Method, whick recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit ot employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately 1o build up the final
obligation. Details of such fund are as follows: . .
Gratuity (Funded)

The Company's gratuity scheme, a defined benefit plan is as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, covers the cligible employces and s administered tnrough certain gratuity fund
trusts. Such gratuity funds, whose investments are managed by an insurcr, make payments to vested employees or their nominees upon retirement, death, incapacitation of £essation
of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and tenure of employment. Vesting occurs ypon completion of five years of service. The amount of gratuity
payable is the empioyees last drawn baSic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service.

Tne following tables set forth the particulars in respect of aforesaid Defined Benefit plans of the Company for the year ended March 11, 2024 and corresponding figures for the
previous year: s

(a) Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation: Gratuity (funded)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Liability at the beginning of the year 1,858.38 1,34963
Interest Cost 137.32 96 38
Current Service Cost 258.49 22278
Benefits paid (258.37) 1187.02)
Remeasurements - Due to Financial Assumptions 66.04 297.91
Remeasurements - Due to Experience Adjustments 80.28 78.72
Liability at the end of the year 2,143.15 1,656.38
\b) Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Asset
As at * Asal
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 1,i82.84 1,241.55
Expected return on Plan Assets 94 .80 88.62
Contributions by the Company
Benefits paid -
Remeasurements - Return on Assets (Excluding Interest Income) 21.43 (47.33)
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 1,399.07 1,232.84
(e} Amount recognised in Balance Sheet
As al As at
Miarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2022
Liability at the end of the year 2,143.15 1,858.38
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 1,399.07 1,282.84
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 744.08 575.54
(d) Components of Defined Benefit Cost
For the Year ended For the Year ended
y March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Service Cost 259.49 22278
interest Cost 137.33 96.36
Expected return on plan assets (94.80) 188.62)
Total Defined wenefit recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss Account 302.02 230.52
(e) Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income '

For the Year ended
March 31, 2024

For the Year ended
March 31, 2023

Remeasurements - Dud (o Financial Assumplions G004 73781
Remeasurements - Due to Experience Adjustments 80.28 78.72
Remeasurements- Return on Assets (21.43) 4/.33
Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 124.89 423.96
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
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(&)

(h)

&C

Balance Sheet Reconciiiation

Cpening Net Liability

Defined Benefit Cost included in Statement of Profit and Loss Account

Remeasurements recognised in OCI
Employers Contribution

Benefit Paid directly by company
Amount recognised in Balance Sheet

Percentage allocation of plan assets in respect of fund managed by insurer is as follows:

Fund managed by Insurer

The Principal actuarial assumptions as at the Balance Sheet date are set out as below:

Summary of Financial Assumptions
Discount Rate

Future Salary Increase

Salary Escalation- After Five Years
Expected Return on Plan Assets

Summary of Demographic Assumptions

Mortality Rate [as % of IALM (2012-14) (Mod.) Ult. Mortality Table)
Disability Table (as % of above mortality rate)

Withdrawal Rate

Retirement Age

Average Future Service

Weighted Average Duration

Sensitivity Analysis

(Rs. in Jakhs}

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
575.54 108.08
302.02 23052
124.89 42396
1258.37) 1187.02)
744.08 575.54
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
100.00% 100.00%
As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

71.10%
8.00%
8.00%
7.10%

100.00%
5.00%

1% 10 8%
50/58 Years
23.49
13.06

Particulars Change in Gratuity Gratuity
. As at As at
Assumption
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

IChanges in Defined Benefit Obligations:

Salary Escalation +0.50% 121.47 101.38
Salary Escalation (0.50%) (112.72) (94.13)
Discount Rates +0.50% (113.12) (94.22)
Discount Rates (0.50%) 123.12 102.47

7.39%
2.00%
8.00%

7.39%

100.00%
5.00%

1% 0 8%
GO/SE Years
23.46

13.05

The above sensitivity analysis is bascd on a change in assumption while holding all other assumption constant. Inpractice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in somc of the
assumption may be co-related. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (projected unit credit
method) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet. The methods and type of assumotion used in prenan i the

sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

Estimate of expected benefit payments (in absolute terms i.e. undiscounted)

Particulars

Vear 1

Year 2

Year 3

Yeard

Year 5

Remaining Subsequent Years

Other Long Term Employee benefits
Compensated Absences

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
112.7C 151.43

77.58 67 48

78.41 63 38

90.17 93.30

89.e4 70.30

1,694.66 1,412.27

The obligation for compensated absences is recognised in the same manner as gratuity except remeasurement benefit which is treated as part of other comprehensive income

2023 are given below:

Privileged Leave
Sick Leave
Average number of people employed

Sensitivity: Contidential (C2)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
77533 672.47

116.62 40.27

1,825 1,791
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33

331

33.2

34

35

351

(Rs. in lakhs)
Risk analysis
Thiough its defined benelit pians, the Cormpany is expused L0 o nuinber of 1isks o the defined Leneht plans, ost significaiii nsks pertainmg e delined benelic pias and
management’s estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:
Investment risk
The Gratuity plan is funded and the company does not have any liberty to manage the fund provided to them. The present value of the defined benefit plan hability 1s calculated
using a discount rate determined by reference to Government of India bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit,
Interest risk
A decrease in the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan liability.
Longevity risk / Life expectancy
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference Lo the best estimale of the mortality of plan participants both during and at the end &l the
employment, An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability
Salary growth risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. An increase in the salary of the plan participants will
increase the plan liability.

FINANCE COSTS
2 For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars
Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 Iarch 31, 2023
(a) Interest Expense on financial liabilities not measured at FVTPL 47,618.35 37,619.82
(b} Other Borrowing Cost (i.e. LC charges, Suppliers Credit, Guarantee Comission etc.) 2,640.25 1,470.88
(c} Less: Transferred to Capital Work in Progress a3a (7,097.16) (1,485.23)
43,161.44 37,605.47

The company has capitalised general funds borrowed and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset by applying a capitalisation rate of 9.80% (March 31, 2023: 9.56%) to the
expenditure incurred on the said asset as required in terms of Ind AS 23 "Borrowing Costs".

Interest Expense includes Rs, 381.04 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 229.45 lakhs) towards lease obligations of Right of Use Assets.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Parti For the Year ended For the Year ended
articulars
Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Depreciation on Tangible Assets a8 38,646.89 35,594.39
(b) Amartisation of Intangible Assets 7 7,653.89 . 8,780.91
46,300.78 44,375.30"
OTHER EXPENSES
. For the Year ended For the Year cnded
Particulars
Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Consumption of Stores and Spares 22,473.94 23,557.30
({b) Power and Fuel 34,705.74 34,507 07
le) Freight and Forwarding Charges 20,521.32 29,317.35
(d) Rent 211.75 128.00
e) #ares and taxes 8950.37 554.04
(f) Insurance 1,57451 1,936.97
(g) Repairs to Plant and Machinery A,167.66 5.466.00
(h)  Repairs to Building & others 876.56 578.26
(i) Operation and Maintenance expenses A4 A31.74 30,283.77
)] Machine Hire Charges 791.23 959 25
%) Royalty, Bid Premium & other mines fees 351 1,95,753.88 1,30,905 51
n Brand Fees 35.2 10,628.08 10,501.12
{m}  Matenal Handling Expenses 5,522.28 3,064 57
{n) Listing and Registrar Expenses 26.44 56.47
o)) Security [xpenses 2,001.5¢C 1,962.75%
{p) Advertisement and Business Promotion Expenses 152.75 215.39
(a) Travelling & Conveyance 1,730.53 1,843 52
(r) Legal & Professional Fees 4,064.10 3,453 65
(s} Payment to Auditors 353 5816 6326
(t) Net (gain)/loss on foreign exchange fluctuation - 5R6.27
{u)  Nel(gain)/loss on Derivative Instruments on fair valuation through profit and loss - 433.45
(v)]  toss on Sale/Discard of Fixed Assets (Net) 307.88 571.10
{w)  Selling and Distribution Expenses 265.47 34999
() Packing Materials consumed and packing charges 1,832.68 1,587.57
{y) impairment Allowance for Doubtfu! Dabt and Deposits 960 3138
{2) Provision for DaublLful Advance 108.26 -
{aa)  Sundry Balances written-off 1.085.72 182.97
{ab)  Sitting Fees to Directors 41,09 i0.39
(ac) Other Miscellaneous Expenses 4,079.34 3,519.11
3,58,742.98 2,87,248.45

Royalty, Bid Premium & other mines fees includes Rs. 38,062.06 lakhs (Maich 31, 2023: Rs, 65,721.72 lakhs) provided on provisional basis based on last notified lren Ore prices pending
publication of such prices by 1BM. ~
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

35.2

35.3

w
v
i

36

37

38

(Rs. in lakhs)

The company in terms of the Brand Licence Agreement dated September 24, 2019 read with addendum dated May 23, 2022 with Vedanta Resources Limited has agreed to pay 1.5% of

Use Tutnover ds “Brand Fee™, in accurdance wilh the said agreement, the wompany hida paid advance of Rs. 11,122.16 lakhs (March 31, 2023 Rs. 16.540.33 lakln) apeinst wivcl Ry
10,628.08 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 10,501.12 lakhs) has been recognised as expense. The balance amount will be adjusted/refunded in subsequent year

Payment to Auditors

For the Year ended For the Year ended

BeT— March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(a) Statutory Audit Fee 35.00 30.00

{b) Certitication etc. 21.00 31.25

{c) Qut of Packet Expenses 2.16 2.01

58.16 63.26

& e A =bc to it
s, 29.60 lakhs to its

The Doard of Director's based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting have approved comission amounting
independent directors which is subject to Shareholder's approval in the ensuring Annual General Meeting.

o
d

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

X For the Year ended For the Year ended
et Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Demand for Water Charges 36.1 (2,579.22) ;
(2,579.22) $ .

36.1 Exceptional ltem Rs. 2,579.22 lakhs represents water withdrawal charges pertaining to earlier period provided during the year as demanded and determined by Damodar Vailey
Corporation.

COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

. For the Year ended For the Year anded
Particulars
Refer Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss
Remeasurement of Defined benefit plans 321 (124.89) (423 96)
(124.89) {423.96)
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related party disclosure as identified by the management in accordance with the Ind AS 24 on ‘Related Party Disclosures” are as follows:
Names of the related parties and description of relationships:
A Company Relationship
Volcan Investment Limited (VIL) Uttimate Holding Company
Vedanta Limited (VL) Holding Company
B Key Management personnel Designation
Arun Misra Non-Executive Director (Appointment w.c.f. September 01, 2023)
Subodh Kumar Rai Director (Appointment w.c.f. September 01, 2023)
Pgovannan Sumathi Non-Executive Cirector . -
Thomas Mathew Thumpeparambil Non-Executive Director
Anand Prakash Dubey Chief Financial Officer
Ashish Kumar Gupta Whole Time Director and Chief Executive Officer
Prasun Kumar Mukherjee Non-Executive Director (Resigned w.e.f June 03, 2023)
Mahendra Singh Mehta Non-Executive Director (Resigned w.e.f June 21, 2023)
C

Entities where KMP or their close member have significant influence or control or Group Enterprises or Companies under common control and with whom transaction have
taken place during the year

Bharat Aluminium Company Limited (BACL)
Sterlite Power Transmission limiled {SPTL) 5

Vizag General Cargo Berth Private Limited {(VGCBPL) ~ y, ?{ L
Maritime Ventures Private Limited {MVPL) « i D "\yA /_qu'/_“_ ’ 2
Vedanta Resources Limited (VRL) B -

Talwandi Saboo Power Limited (TSPL) e

Hindustan Zinc Limited (HZL) g 2 =

Janhit Electoral Trust (JET)

Ferro Alloy Corporation Limited (FACL)
MALCQ Energy Limited (Earlier Vedanta Aluminium Limited) (MEL) \
Sterlite Technologies Limited (STL) v
fiinova Runaya Private Limited (MRPL)

Runaya Refining LLP (Runaya)

Sesa Mining Corporation Limited (SMCL)

STL Digital Limited (SDL) .
Sesa Resources Limited (SRL)

MALE A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)

D Related party transaction:
Nature of Transaction Holding Company- VL
2023-24 2022-23
Recovery of Expenses 265.63 187.33
Reimbursement of Expenses 352.50 .
Purchase of materials - 21,497.06
Purchase of assels - 273.04
\nterest Expenses 5,278.86 2,758.33
Guarantee Comission 713.47 £50.16
Corporate Cost Allocation and reimbursement 3,453.81 4,360.80
Advance received against Sale of Materizls 1,43,136.00 12,500.00
Sale of scrap 961.01 .
Sale of materials 65,851.75 2,25897
Sale of assets - 8.10
Closing balance as at March 31 2023-24 2022-23
Inter Corporate Deposit Payable 38,716.80 13,238.40
Trade Payables . ' 16,261.57 22,480.22
Reimbursement of Expenses Payable 3.5 =
Recovery of Expenses Receivable 017 -
Advance from Customer ' 86,822.55 10,216 16
Corparate Guarantee given against borrowings 1.99.948.19 1.28,480.00
Interest Payable 1,370.81 188.03
Nature of Transaction Key Management Personnel Entities where KMP or their close member haue_!
2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 _l
Sale of goods
SPTL = - 1,961.47 2,672.10
MRPL - - 3,490.11 71.3.03
FACL - - - 388.34
Sale of assets
FACL - - - g 1.39
Purchase of assets
BACL 2 - - - 1251
FACL . - - 1.33
SMCL - - - 10.69
SRL - - - 0.63
Recovery of Expenses
FACL - . 3.09 10 18
HZL = & 25.36 5.906
Runaya c = 10,55 -
BACL = - 13.67 6.92
MEL - - 16.56 47.88
TSPL - - - 4.48
Reimbursement of Expenses
BACL = - 30.01 2.12
FACL - . 8.82 g
HZL - . 23.06 (.68
VGCBPL - - - 0.32
SOL = ] 51.16 -
MEL . . - 57.40
TSPL - - 0.51 952
Purchase of Materials/Services Recelved *
VGCBPL - - . 5.79
SOL - . 863.30
FACL - . 669.69
MEL . 5 2 e
MVPL - . 1558 1,343.82
Runaya - - 3.39 10.00
Brand Fees
VRL . % 10,628 08 10,501.12
Interest Received
SETL - - 47.51 54.14
Remuneration
Mahesh lyer = 13.35
Anand Prakash Dubey 110.38 113.80
Navnath Laxman Vhatte - 151.72
Ashish Gupta 27515 161.77
Director sitting fees and comission
Prasun Kumar Mukherjee 387 19.46 .
Subedh Kumar Rai 12.46 - -
Mahendra Singh Mehta . 4.56 19.21
Thomas Mathew Thumpeparambil . \\_—"_ A {1 2021 13.26
- W T Mooviad G dbiay

. ) . ».i'
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. in m

Nature of Transaction

Key Management Personnel

Entities where KMP or their close member have |

2023-24 2022-23

2023-24

2022-23

Closing balance as at March 31

—

Remuneration Payable
Anand Prakash Dubey
Ashish Gupta

Director Comission Payable
Prasun Kumar Mukherjee
Subodn Kumar Rai
Mahendra Singh Mehta
Thomas Mathew Thumpeparambil
Trade Payable

FACL

SOL

SPTL

MVPL

BACL

VRL

Advances Given

VRL

Trade Receivable

HZL

Runaya

VGCBPL

MRPL

SPTL

MEL

4.35 2
9.73

2.62 13.46
an #
331 13.95
14.96 10.13

42.76
10,99
1.57
91249
5.28

50,29

6,461 79 5,957.70
278
033
3.96

386.32

. 1255
63.31 1592

» (330

3196

E Compensation of Key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other member of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits

396.77
16.59
13.27

398.20
70.47
2394

Notes:
1. The above related party information is as identified by the

2. In respect of above parties, there is no provision for doubtful debts as on March 31,

debts due from/ to them.
3. Post-Employee benefits and other long term

management and relied upon by the auditor

acturial hasis 2 the sarne is available for 2ll the employees together.

4. All transactions from related parties are made in ordina
receivables relating to amounts owed by related
market in which the related party operates.

ry course of business. For the

5, Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

All transactions are from related parties

receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial ye

market in which the related party operates.

2024 and no amount has been written back or written off during the year in resgect of
amployee benefits have been disclosed made on retirement/resignation of services but does not include provision made on
year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has not recorded any impairment of

parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of tne related party and the

are made in ordinary course of business. For the year ended March 31 2024, the Company has not recorded any impairment of
ar through examining the financial position of the related party and the

39 DISCLOSURE AS PER IND AS 116
i) Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets:

Particulars Software Land Buildings Equipment Vehicle Total

As at March 31, 2022 - 33,273.66 239.41 511.76 1,281.79 35,306.62

Addition - 4,952.34 128.06 630.82 295.08 6,006.30

Deletion - - (2.09) - . 12.09)
Adjustments - = (14.66) 2211 213.05
Dcpreciation - (1,241.90} (112.94) (268.07) (688.54) (2,311.45)
As at March 31, 2023 - ~ 36,984.10 252.48 B59.85 1,116.04 39,712.43

Addition 1,581.41 23,082.09 340.00 1,360.80 93.67 16,457.97

Daletion - - - - (36.74) (36.74)
Adjustments - - 15.04 (13.92) 1.32 f244

Depreciation {210.85) (1,637.00} 228.01}) (852.13) (472.07) (3,401.06)
As at March 31, 2024 1,370.56 58,429.19 378.47 1,354.60 702.22 62,235.04
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)
i) The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:
Parliculors As ut As al
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current lease liabilities 21,637.57 7
Non-current lease liabilities e 2,503.15 g B
Total 24,140.72 19,002.37
iii) The following is the movement in lease liabilities:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening 19,002.37 23,469.34
Additions 26,457.07 6.106:30
Finance cost accrued during the period 381.04 229.45
Adjustments against assets 2.44 (160.16)
Deletions (36.74) (2.09}
Fayment of lease liabilities (21,666.386) (10.. 71“;17;‘[
Closing 24,140.72 19,002.37
iv) The table below provides detalls regarding the contractual maturities of lease fiabilities on an undiscounted basis
2 As at As at
Particulais March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Not later than one year 21,693.00 1783455
Later than one year and not more than five years 2,724.80 1,536 62
Later than five years

v) Also refer Note no. 5.3 regarding lease liabllity being recognised pending execution of lease deed and Note no. 44 dealing with Envirenmental Clearence and approval for
afforestation iand

vi) Further 1o above, the Company has certain operating lease arrangements for office, transit houses, furnitures and fixtures etc. for short-term leases Cxpenditure incurred on
account of rental payments under such leases during the year and recognized in the Profit and Loss account amounts to Rs. 211.75 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 128 0C lakhs)

4
(]

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR):
A) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Particulars As at As at

Refer Note MNo. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) Guarantees given by banks on behalf of the Company 10.00 10.00
b} Electricity Duty charged pursuant to Jharkhand Electricity Duty (Amendment) Act, 2021 17.3(c) 6,037.39 3,516.22
c) Electricity Duty on Captive Power Plant pursuant to Jharkhand Electricity Duty {Amendment) Act, 17.3(c) 3.310.39 1,616.59

dj Demand raised in terms of Mine Development and Production Agreements (MOPA] entered with

State Government for iron Ore Mines (Refer Note (B) below} 1,75,726.21 1,75,726.21
1,85,063.99 1,80,6869.02

B) The Company has been granted Nadidihi Iron Ore and Manganese Block with Lease Area of 117 21 Hectares and Nadidihi Iron ore Block with Lease Area of 74 50 Hectares in
Odisha on November 20, 2021. The Mine Developmant and Production Agreements (MDPA} entered inte by the Company with respect to the above two Iron Qre Block
obligates certain minimum despatch requirement for each year of the operations.

The Company has received demand notices dated December 03, 2022 aggregating Rs. 1,70,780.81 lakhs and dated April 11, 2023 aggregating Rs. 4,945.40 Iakhs towards
penalty for shortfall in minimum despatch for the first vear of the lease i.e. upto November 19, 2022 and for subsequent quarter thercof from November 20, 2022 upto
february 19, 2023 respectively for both the mines. in respect of period from Novemnber 20, 2022 upto period ended February 19, 2023 demands have been made on provisional
basis and for the remaining period thereafier no such demand has been made. Management believes that the demands for shoitfall as made against the company are not valig
as per the provisions of law and MOPA. Accordingly, based on a legal opinion obtained, in respect of first year of commercial operations the Company has filed a Hn"w.lun
Application before Revisional Authority, Ministry of Mines challenging the said demand against which the said authority has directed the state pouzrnmant that no coercive
actions should be taken to realise the amount demanded till any further order in this respect. in view of the management the obligation for minimuim despatch quantity has
been met cumulatively on aanual basis and pending final decision as advised legally no liability requiring any provision on account of shortfall as pe: the abaove demands 1s
expected to arise.

Notes:

In view of the management supported by legal opinion and various judicial pronouncements, the contention of the claimants in respect of statutory liability pror to June 04, 2018 are
not tenable as per the Resolution Plan approved by Hon'ble NCLT and no outflow of fund with respect to these are expected. The Company's other pending litgations comprises of
claims against the company and proceedings pending with Statutory/ Government Authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made
adequate provisions, and disclosed contingent liabilities, where applicable, in its financial statements and daes not expect any cash outflow in this respect
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)
Q) CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

As at As al
Fipiniar March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and 93,236.42 1,04,990.16
In Foreign Currency in Foreign Currency
(b) Forward Contract Outstanding
In USD 1,25,72,179 3,56,14,827
2,738,100

in EURO N

D) The company has imported certain capital items etc., for the capital projects pending completion as on March 31, 2024. These imports have been made under Manufacturing
and Other Operations in Warehouse Regulations, 2019 ("MOOWR Scheme’) notified by Central Board of Indirect taxes and Customs whereby customs duty beccmes payable
either on clearances of such items for domestic purposes or scraping thereof if no such clearance is made. The amount of duty with respect to these items work out 1o be Rs
10,971.51 lakhs which will become payable on happening of above stated events. This being relatable to capital items under installation, as such does not have any impact on
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flows of the company for the year ended March 31, 2024 . -

41 Segment information
(a) Description of segments and principal activities
The Company is engaged in the manufacture and supply of Wire rods, TMT bars, Ductile Iron (DI) Pipes and Billets, and also deals in Iron Gre, Pig Iron and iron and steel scrap products
generated while manufacturing these products or otherwise in connection therewith. In term of Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment”, the Company has pne business segment i.e Iron and
Steel and related products and all other activities revolve around the said business.

(b) Geographical information
The company is domiciled in India, however also sells its products outside India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the customers and
each product is shown in the table below.

Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended
March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
tn India
- Billets 12,320.57 7.921.32
- TMT bars 2,60,477.50 2,58,843.56
- Wire rods 2,16,987.57 2,27,746.92
- Dl pipes 1,47,174.12 1,26,285.24
PIG Iron 80,534.08 85,857.95
- Iron Ore 90,368.74 40,180.14
- Others 20,550.35 12,935.75
Outside India . °
- Billets s 1,6772.37
- TMT bars 249.48 90.42
-PIG Iron 942.04 232.92
-oIP . .
- Iron Ore 14,436.03 31,434.48
- Wire rogs 6,553.08 4,683.03

(¢) There are no single customer directly or indircctly from whom more than 10% of the revenue is derived.

a2 Calculation of Earning Per Share is as follows:
For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Net Profit/ (Loss) for basic and diluted earnings per share as per Statement of Profit and Loss (96,756.92) (55,790.55)
Net Prafit/ (Loss) for Basic and Diluted earnings per share (96,756.82) 155,790 58}
b) Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
Number of equity shares outstanding as on March 31 1,84.90,30,224 1,84,90,30,224
Add: Movement in Equity Shares issued during the period - -
Number of cquity shares outstanding 1,84,90,30,224 1,84,90,30,224
Weighted average number of equity shares censidered for calculation of basic and diluted carnings 1,84,90,30,224 1,84,90,30,224
¢) Earnings per share (EPS) of Equity Share o T
of Rs. 10/- each:
Basic EPS (Rs.) (a/d) (5.23) 13.02)
Diluted EPS (Rs.) (a/d) 15.23) (3.02)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

44

45

(Rs. in lakhs)

The Cotmpany lias various fund end nun-fund besed working Lapilal fadiiities from banks atwunting 1o Rs. 1,18,500.00 jskiis sceurued by Fist ranking pan passu by doed of
Hypothecation executed in favour of Vistra ITCL (India) Limited, security trustees over the whole of the current asscts of the company both aresent and future including stockof row
materials, stock-in-process, semi-finished goods, finished goods, stores and spares. Further secured by all of the book debts, amount outstanding, monies receivable, investments,
claims and bills of the borrower and Guarantees from the Holding company.

a) In respect of company's application for obtaining Environmental Clearance (EC) from Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climale Change (MoEF), MolF vide ils letler dated
February 02, 2022 had deferred the grant of EC till Forest Clearance (FC) Stage-Il is granted to the company. The company has so far procured substantial portion of land and the same
have either been handed over to forest department or is in the advance stage of doing so for compensatory afforestation as required for obtaining Stage- |l clearence. Further, the
company has received Cabinet approval from Government of Jharkhand for 571.26 acres of Government land and also transferred 440.05 acre private land to Forest Department for
Compensatory afforestation. The Company is in the process of procuring remaining land including certain other government land for which cabinet approvals etc is awaited as on this
date, so as 10 ensure all the necessary comptiances for abtaining EC. In the meantime, MoEF vide its letter dated June 05, 2023 has revoked the stage | Forest clearance granted earlier
and thereby the company has made reprasentation for reconsideration of the same and grant of time for ensuring cxpedious action for compliances as substantial progress have been
made in identification and procurement of forest land. The State Govt of Jharkhand has also submitted its request letter to MOEF to reconsider the FC Stage | revocation decision and
grant some more time in light of the progress so far made, further efforts being taken in this respect inspite of the difficulties being faced by the Company. Moreover, as requested by
MoEF the State Government has submitted the status of compliances by the company with respect to various conditions stipulated for granting £EC. Pending completion of the entire
process and determination of aggregate cost, Rs. 19,699.69 lakhs (including Rs. 22,977.83 lakhs provided during the period) (net of Rs. 26,830.69 lakhs paid) towards cost of land and
Rs. 20,556.58 lakhs towards other related costs etc. (net of Rs. 1,473.99 lakhs paid) has been provided on estimated basis and have been carried forward in the accounts as on March
31, 2024. Differential amount and/or gdjustments in this respect will be given effect to on determination therecf, On receipt of £C, application for obtaining Consent 1o Lstablisi (CTC)
and then Consent to Operate (CTO) will be made by the company.

b) Pending necessary approvals and clearences etc. from MoEF for granting CTO, Hon’ble Supreme Court has directed that operation of steel plant shall not be interfered with on the
ground of want of £C, £C, CTE or CTO. Despite constraints in meating long term funding requirements for want of CTO and losses incurred by the company, the net worth of the
company is positive. Further, considering the direction of Hon'bie Supreme Court allowing the continuation of the operations of the company and continued support by the Holding
company for meeting company's funding and other requirements, the accounts of the company have been continued to be prepared on going concern basis,

.
Operational Buyers’ Credit and Suppliers’ Credit is availed in foreign currency fram offshore branches of Indian banks or foreign banks at an interest rate ranging from 6 % ta 7% per
annum. Further, other trade credit in rupee denominated currency from domestic banks at interest rate ranging from 6.00% to 9.00% per annum . These trade credits are largely
repayable within 180 days from the date of draw down, Operational Buyer's credit availed in foreign currency is backed by Standby Letter of Credit issued under working capital

facilities sanctioned by domestic banks. These facilities are secured by first pari passu charge over the present and future current assets of the Company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs)

During the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

The inputs used in fair valuation measurement are as follows:

-Fair valuation of Financial assets and liabilities not within the operating cycle of the company is amortised based on the borrowing rate of the company.

-Financial instruments are valued based on quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace. In respect of derivative
financial instruments, the inputs used for forward contracts are Forward foreign currency exchange rates and Interest rates to discount future cash flow.

d) Derivatives assets and liabilities:
The Company foliows established risk management policies, including the use of derivatives to hedge its exposure to foreign currency fluctuations on foreign currency assets / liabilities. The counter

party in these derivative instruments is a bank and the Company considers the risks of non-performance by the counterparty as non-material. :

i) The following tables present the aggregate contracted principal amounts of the Company’s derivative contracts outstanding:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Category Currency ~ v r g

mo mount in Forei;
No. of Deals atabiaas No. of Deals )

Currency Currency
USD/INR 15 1,25,72,179 24 3,56,14,827
Buy Forward a

EURO/INR - - 2 2,78,100]

(Amount in Foreign Currency)

i) Unhedged Foreign Currency exposures are as follows:

ii)

As atj As at

Nature Currency
March 31, 2024] March 31, 2023
Trade Payables (Including acceptances) EURO 1,40,841 -
Trade Fayables (Including acceptances) usp 11,98,535 .
Trade Receivable usD 4,29,443 76,94,507

The foreign exchange forward contracts mature within twelve months. The table below analyses the derivative financial instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining

period as of the balance sheet date:

(Amount in Rs. Lakh)

Sensitivity: Confidential (C2)

As at As at
Paticulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Not later than one month (15.18) (15.27)
Later than cne month and not later than three months (0.06) (229.12)
Later than three months and not later than one year (38.40)
Later than one year

\ M

o)




(ZD) |enuapyu0) ANANISUAS

. . 5
TP

- (tre'ov'T) L0S'P6'SL (z60'69°2) (saniqen)/s1asse 3an|
- (trg'ov'1) - (SES'86'TT) sajqeded Jaylo pue 3peJ)
- : L05'V6'9L EVP'6E'y 3|qeAIaI3Yy 3ped|
oun3 oyn3 asn asn
£20Z ‘TE Y2120 vZOZ ‘TE Wiepw €207 ‘TE Yen $Z0Z 'TE Yya1ew
sigjnoied
18 5y 18 57 1e sy je sy _

(A2uasan) udiaio4 up unowy)
:smoj|oj se ase pouad Juipodas ayy jo pua ay) 1e se Aduaund udiaioy 0) duNsodxa snouea ay) Jo Junowe uiAlied ay |

"A821e41s Buidpay uo siseq JejnBas uo adiApe 13dxa sa3e) OS|E PUB SBAIIBIIU| JuBWSERURLU %Si: S1I SMalnal Ajjedipousad Aueduuo) ay] "SI9RIIUCD pieamuo) Se Yons juawniysu; duidpay

10 25n ySnosy) siewesed pauyap yim ainsodxa Aduannd udialoy $11 sadpay AjaAlloe 1l UIRIaYM WRISAS MalnaL JuawaBuewW ysi aAIsuayYaidwod e sey Auedwod ay) 's3asso| xai0y 18w 03 Japlo uj
‘sa|qen1anas apen pue sajqeded taylo pue apen s, Auedwo) ayl 01 Ajuewnd sajejas sales afueyixa usiaiog

ul safueyd Jo ysu ay) 03 ainsodxa s Auedwo) ay) 'sajes aduedxa udiaioy ul saBueyd jo esnedaq 21enIIN| [im ainsodxa Ue JO SMOJ) YSED S4NINJ 10 BN|BA Jigj 3yl leyl 35 ayl st s Aduanind udiauoy
sisig Aduaaing udivaoy

‘sajqeded 1ayjo

pue apeJ) pue s§UIM0LI0q ‘SPUNy [ENINW Pue SHSOdap Paxiy ul JUBLWISIAUL ‘SI|qRAIaI3 BPRI] SIPN|DUI ) SH 12)IBW AqQ Pal1dajye SJUaWNJISUl [BIDUBULY iS1 301d 13410 pue S| 31e. 153191ut Hsl Aduauind ale
SHSU JayJew 0 sluauodwod Jofew ay]| JUaWNIISUI |EIDURUL B §O SMOJ) YSEI 3un3ny JO 3N|BA JIB) 3y) Ul uolielea up Junnsal uonendany 13Jew a|q ssod wouy Buisuz AJuielsadun Jo ySu 3yl i ysu Jen

NSIY LINUVIAL (1)

*san113lgo ysu pue sa1jod s Auedwo) ayl Yiim aduepsodde ul paBeusw pue painsealw ‘paljnuapl 24 S$3sU [e1DUeUl Jeyl pue sainpadcud pue sanijod sjeudoidde
Aq pausonod ase sysu ay) sysi asolyy JuiBeuew oy sapijod sasosdde pue smainal $,4032911Q JO pJeog 3yl ‘3duewsopad |BIJUBUL S UO S129J)9 ISIDAPE |LIUSI0d SZIWIUIW 0} 3335 PUB SISNI2W [BIDUBUL
jo Aupqeidipasdun ay) 2952104 03 SI $N20J 5 Aueduio) ay| "SI ALPINDI| pue XSu JIPId S JANJEW SIPNIUL YSU [BIDURUY AY aY| "SySu [BIDUBUL JO AlalieA B 0] pasodxa ale sanianoe sAuediuo) ayj|

ANIWIADYNYIN ISIY TVIONVYNIS

‘'$S07 PUE 10Jd JO JUAWAIeIS Ay Ut 150D 3oueul4 Japun papnidul si pue Ajaandadsas £70Z PUB $Z0Z ‘1€ Yyziepy papua
1e3A By} 10 syie| TE'OLT'T 'SY PUe SYNe| 8L TSH'E 'Sy jo adieyd ul paynsas s1ajsues) asay L sapande Sunelado Aq papiacid ysed 1au Ul 9|es YINs Wwody spaasold ay) papnpou| sey pue asinoial INoyim
syuawasuene Japun ‘Ajpandadsal supie| 0E° L9202 T 'Sy PUe SY»e| gk LEE'SST 'SY JO SI3SSE [RIDUBULY JO B|BS SE PapI0Ia PUER PalIajsues] Auedwo? a3yl '€Z0Z PUB vZ0Z ‘TE Y2Ie papue Jeah ayl Buung

‘sanaoe Sunueuy

WO1y SMOJ YSe pue uojisod |IJURLY JO JUIWDIETS 3YL U1 SBUIMOLIOG S8 PapI0Dal 1B PAAIEIAL STUNOLWE ay) s3sed Lons ul "Aj2uipiooy ‘syueq ay) Yiim Juawaasde ayl ur payaads sy o3 322lgns ‘sjasse
|eI2UBUY P313J[0UN Ay Iseyundal 03 patednqo s1 Auedwo) Byl ‘@s1N02as ylM Sjuawauelse JapuN ASIN0J3S Ylm aq ABW S12SSE [RIDURUIL JO JIJSUBL] ‘SISED UIRLISD Ul S1ASSE [RIJURUL 3y) JO AnjeA
JuiAuied ay) ue paseq ajes JO SN 243 1B PAPI0aL SI8 3SINEIBI INOYIM SJISSE [BIIUELY JO 2|85 U0 SaSSO| PUR SUIRD 'S}3SSE |RIJUeUY JO J|BS SB PAPI02aJ 358 S4ajsuei} yons ‘AjFuIpioddy "851n0321 INOYIM
SI JDJSUEJY PUE 513SSE [BIUBUL BY) SAC |0IU0D SI3PUBLINS Auedwo) 3yl ‘SIUSWABURIIE Yl JO SWISY 3Y) JOpUN "SYURG 01 J|RAIDAS S|jig 53 SJajsuen AUBCWOD) Y3 ‘SSaUISNG O ISINOD [eLIOU BYY U]
s)asse |eryueuy JO 3jes

(swyrep ut “sy)

(@

7202 'TE HOYVIN A3AN3 YV3A JHL HO4 SLNIN3LYLS TWIDNVNIJ OL SILON



{22} 1puapruo) Alipsuag

‘Anpigeiyosd au) uo jredwi ue aney Aew aies axyiew Suljlenasd PUE 840 UOJI JO 1502 Buisiel 4O |ENUBIRYIP PUB |BOD JO FUNSISUOD
Ajurew jeu@iew papodun j0 WBWaINI0id J0) AW PEI| Y] JBAIMOH “PaINsse uaaq sey 210 uoJ| jo Ajlddns suonelado Buiuiw JO JUBWAIUIWWED 0] Uanbasuod ‘81Q uoy| Jo 1Padsal uf "BuUISIes U0 S8INa)
10 sa1es 10 sa2ud Buijienasd UC Paseq B0 PUB U0 UCJI a¥) sjelalew mes Ay sasnaosd Auedwod ayl ‘Apepuns sasud 1aysew Juipeaald 1e 519nposd ayl Buyjes Aq padeuew uaaq sey s 3oud Aypowwo)

‘sinduy [eL31eW ML a0 pue desds uiz ‘shoje 0.3, ‘|eod

Buiy0d ‘as0 uoyl Jo aseydsnd 3y} 1oy sadud ul suoieniany ol 1algns 51 Auedwo) ayl 53INPoud 8315 31 JO 3|eS 3y} Wwodj suiea Auedwo) 3yl 18y} 31U3ASI 3Y) BINPAL ABW SI01IEY 3sayl Jo Aue ui sadueyd
3ISIIAPY "YIMoJ3 pue SuoI}IpPUO JIWoU0I3 [euoidas pue |eqold pue (sindul [euajew Med JO 53502 a2y) 3uipnjoul) s1502 uonlanposd ‘puewap pue Ajddns se yans sJo1dey Ag paduanjul 3q Aew sadud asay)
‘Auedwo) ayl Ag pjos s31onposd (3315 3y} 104 saoud suiwiaap Ajesaual sadio) 1adeN S1anpoud 2235 S11 JO 3jes ay) 03 pale|al suoiien3an|y @dud Jo ySU 13NJew Ayl 01 pasodxs s1 anuanal s Auedwo) 3y
As1 @d Appownuo)

'SjuUaWwale)s |eueuy s Auedwo) ayz uo 123449 9Msoddo pue |enba ue aaey pinom juiod siseq QS Ul ase13p

9L'9ET'L 95°0v6 318y Juieo|q -sduimo.nsog
sjulod siseq 0§ U1 aseasdu|

€207 ‘1€ yrien YZOZ ‘IE Udiew
papua teak ayy Jo4 |papua ieak ayy Jo4 &m.:u_tmmr
XE) 31043q 1404d UO 139443

:sduimousoq pue sueo| jo uoipod el duneo| uo 1502 Jumosiog ayy J0 1edw! ayl sa1ensUOWIP I|qel BuUIMO|10) AY] “WURISUOI PIBY SI|QBLIEA J2YI0 ||B YA

‘uonedjdwi |elajew asned

10u op yans se pue sasodind apen 1oy Ajjesauad sanamoy aue sysodap asay] ‘|emaual sy anp Buljjey 3jed 153133ul 0) pasodxa ale pouad WI3) LOYS JOJ ase Yarym Sjueq yim siisodap ale alay) Jayung
‘anjeA J|ej 1e ag 0] paJapisuol sem Suimolioq pies Jo

wunowe JuiAizes ayl awes ayl SuuaDISUO) “SUOIINNISUI |BIDUBUIL PUE SYueq 3yl wolj duimo:iog s1es Juneoly wouy sasue Ajuewnd 3jes 3saiaiul ur 3dueyd o) Bunejas ¥su 1ayieus Ul ainsodxa Auedwod 3y

ySiY 1By 1531 -

sjuawWalels |epueuly s,Auedwo) ay) Uo 1232 a1soddo pue [enba ue aaey pjnom YN| JO FuiudaYyIBalls %S ¥

TT9TE (8¢ 8¢)
o¥Nn3
TT9TE 68°LT asn
(%S Ag uNI jo Buluayeapn) 5318VAIZI3Y
- (€€9) oYNn3
- (v6'61) emj
(%S Aq ¥NI jo Suiuasjeapy) SI18VYAVd
£20T ‘TE YMeW PZ0Z ‘TE YdIew
papua 1eak ay) Jo4 |papua 1eah ayy Jo4 d sigjnaed|

Xe) 210424 1044 U 2943
:$MO||0} SE dJ. sajqeAed pue sajqen1adas paleulwouap gsn Woly Ajuiew sasue ssof 1o Jyoud ui dunnsau sisAjeue ANIARISUAS

(syjef ut sy)

©Z0Z ‘TE HOYVIAI 03AN3I YV3A JHL HOd SINIWILYLS TVIDNVNIA OL SILON



{£2) (enuapyuo) ‘Apanisuag

"smojy yses [edpund pue 1sa1aus yieq apnpput s3jqey ay | “Aed 03 pannbal ag ues Auzdwo) a4l YoIym LO S1EP 1S3I|LE3 Y] UO PISEQ S31LI|IGRI [eURUY JO SMO}) YSBI Pajuncisipun
3yl uo paseq dn UMBIp L33 aney s3|qel ay] ‘spouad Juawdedas paasBe yum S3IUIGEN [BIDUBUY 3AIBALAP-UOU S)I 10§ Ajuniew |emaeliuod Bujulewal s Auedwol ayy (1e1ap sajgel Suimo|loy ayl
sajqel ysu 3sasaquy pue Ayipinb -

'S1s12 Ayipinbi) 8yl |043uod 0] djay wial ul pUe Mo} Ysed aAnisod e aaey |jim sainseaw uonejuawajdun Suioduo ay)

uawasnnbals puny $31 183w 0} Aueduiod 3uipjoy wouy sdumollog pue syueq wouy sanijiey [ended unpom ‘sjenidde |eulalul uo salas Auedwod 3y ‘sawi [|e 18 S1uawannbal [e131e|0 pue ysed 5,1 132w

01 Aipinbyj Jo jaA3| WiNwWNdo uielUlew 01 S aA1123lqo s Auedwo?) ay) "adud ajqeuoseal B IE 10 awn uo suonedigo 511 12aw Jo 3135 01 3|ge 3G 10U j|Im Auedw o] Y1 1BY] YsU 3] S paulyap st s Aupinbn
S ALigIinon (m)

‘asie 0} paydadxa aJe Jsuiede auay) $3550) 11Pasd ou ‘porsad Suiiodal ay) Jo PU Yl e anp ised ase Ydiym (syxe| pT SSE'OT 'SH TEZ0T 'TE Y4B SY3e| SZ'0Z8'T 'Sy 01 SBuijunowe $3|qeaiadds apes]
pasedu Jou Ing anp jsed a1e JeY) S19SSE [BPUBULY

‘suonisul Bupjueq Ayuiom 1ipass pue paindal yum pjay ale syjueq Yyim syuajeainba ysed pue yse) ‘pasiedwi Jou anp ised Jayuau ale s)ueq yum sjisodap pue sjuajeainba ysed pue yse)
pasedwi Jou anp ised 1ayuau ale JBY) S13SSE |B1IUeUl]

‘Jualxa jey) 01 ysi 1pasd
ay1 9189w YIym 'sIaW0ISNI S WOy PAI) Jo JaNla] pue susodap A1unaas ‘seaueApe Uaje) os|e sey Auedwon ay) ysu UPaId Ayl 2un23s 01 SIUSLUADUBYUS 1IPAID JAYI0 JO [BIBIEJ0I Sayel Auedwio) ay]

'3|qeAISI3J SIUNDJIE 3]} 4O %OT UBY) 3J0W JOJ SJUNOIDE YDIYM (syye| T2 '96Z'ST Sy *€Z0Z 'TE Y21BN) Sy3e| /S'868 Y
‘sy J0 duipue)sino Suiaey (23443 :EZOT 'TE YIBW) 13Wo1snd om] Si 313y “Jead ayy JO puUa 3yl Je 3dURjeq S3|qBAID3) 3R] 343 JO "Paiejasun pue 2die| Suiaq aseq J3WOIsNI 3y} 0} anp pajlwi| s ysU 1P
10 UOIIEAUAIUOI 34| "SI NPaJd 0} aunsodxa wnwixew s Auedwod ail sjuasasdal (595s0| Juawiedw) Jo 18u) ‘S)UBLWRIS [BIDUBUY 3Y) Ul PasIudeaal s1asse [erueul aadadsal jo Junowe Suihiied ayy

‘2JOWRL 3q 0] PAIBPISUOI U3 sey jsuiede alayl AJan0dal 1UIXD 3Y1 0) apew ale suoisiaoid ajeldoidde pue Juawadeuew ay) Ag Ajjedipouad
palen|ers/pamalnal 3Je SIIWOISND WO S3|GBAISI3Y 'S3|qeAIa3al Jaylo pue apes) Jo 13ad5al uj §3550| PaLIndul Jo Alewnsa 51 syuasaldal jey)y Juswiiedwi 1oy 3auemojje ue saysligelsa Aueduwiod ayjg

~ S 11paJd s 3jedniw 03 aajuesend yueq Jo/pue S}PAII O 13132| Bulpnjoul Ajundas Asessadau suielqo Auedwod

3y} Jayun4 Ajduipiodoe 1as aJe SWI| YSU [ENPIAIPU|  '3|qBAISI3. Sjunodde jo BuldSe pue SPuaJ} JIWOU0I3 JUBLND ‘UOKRIPUOD |BIDUBLY 3Y) JUN0IDE Olul Bubje]} ‘SIaWO0Isnd Jo AJijigel|as [enueuly ay)
sassasse Ajjeatpouad Auedwo) 2y "siseq Suloduo ue uo pasojjuow §| sid JIPaJd 03 ainsodxa ayy pue adejd ul Adjjod 3paJd e sey Juswageueul 3yl ‘siyl aBeuew o) (Sajqeaadal apesy Ajuewud) sailianoe
gunesado si Wwouy ysi1 Upad 01 pasodxa st Auedwo) ay| "ssoj |e1aueuly e 01 Sulpea| ‘IR0 JIWOISNI 10 JUBWNASUI |BIDUBLY B JaPUN SUoRESIGO S31 123w J0u jjim ALRCiaaunod JeY] ¥sU aY3 SISk IPaJD
ASIY Lia3yd (1)

“Juedigudis Jou s1 ysu asid yons ‘Pasanu)
sey Auedwo) ayj YoM ul Sawayds puny jeninw ayl jo oljojuiod BuiApiapun jo ainusl PoYs A|SAIRISE 34 USAI JOABMOH “SIUAWISIAUL L|INS JO aN(eA pue uinjas syy peduur AR Yoiym aled 1531aiu)
ur safueyd woyy Ajurew asue Jeyl ysu adud Jajiew 0y 3jqndassns Ale SJUIWISAAUL YINS “SHUeq yiim sysodap paxyy Ul pue sasnoy puny SUIpeal JO S3wWaYIs puny (eninw Ul sisaaul osje Auedwio) ayyp

3s asud 1ayl0

(suyey ut 'sy)

PE0Z "TE HOUVIN A3ANT ¥V3A IHL 404 SINIWILVLS TVIDONVNI4 OL STLON



(stpje| ui “sy)

{£2) fenuapyuod (Apanisuas

T9EEE6L 3 = - T9EEE'BL T9°€EE6L sajqeAed Jayjo pue apes |
v8vLLLTT - Ve PLLULTT . YR VLLLT'T upas) sianddng ; wpasd ssaAng |euonesadQ
LE200°61 1¢89r'1 [V Lvs L SSS E0'LEY'IT LETO0'BL Aupger] aseaq
S8'958 . : 58958 = 58958 a|geAed ysa133u]
gy g J ey i S3LINIeW JU.LND SuIpnULl
SE06SOVT SL8PSPE'T 08°'0Z0'€T 08'0ZC’ee - SE0650V'T (sanuniew 3 ipnjul)
sduimolsoq Buueaq 152431u|
e10] ieah syjuow z1 o SYIUOW g UBY) $5 R
| < Yy 109 Y 9 ueyj ssa puewaqg uQ SuiAuie) sig|noued
€20 ‘TE Y2JeWn 1e sy
LO'7YS'98 . - - LO'vYS'98 LO¥YS'98 sajqeAed JaU30 pue apei|
88'#9€°98 = 88 #9£'98 - 88't9¢£98 upaid siayddns / upas) sieAng jeuonesado
TLovT'YreE ST'E05°C 0L°€E0°T L1106 0£'669°6T ZL0orT've Aupgen aseaq
9L TIE'E d - 9L TIE'E - 9L TIE'E 2|geAed 152191u]
e R 4 : ' 5 P (sanumew juaund duipnpur)
ZE'QTEBTLT 99°S68'8%'1 080Z0°'1S 0802582 90168 ZEBZEBL'Z
sduimolioqg Suieaq 15a4aiu|
B30, Jeal SYjuouwl g uey) ssa 3 FEAWN nape
230l 7 ot syjuow ZT 03 9 Y 9 ueyj 559 puewag uQ Surhuiey sigjnaijeqd
PZOT ‘TE Y2HEW I8 SY
salygen [eroueuldy jo sisAjeuy Alniegy
O 8EZ'ET S6'TSELZ'T je3o1
%EE ] Oy'8ET'ET S61SELT'T uNIf
(%) p1eYy sdumouicq sduimoulloqg
: 1sa1aqu) adetane paaydiam 23184 paxi4 a1es Supeoly
£2Z0T "I YHEW Je sy sigjnatedy
089121V ZS'TI1'88'T |eloL
%L 08°91Z'IY ZS'TIT'88'T NI
(24) mey sduimouicq sduimolioqg
1saiaquy adesone paiysdiapn 21el paxyy @3es Suireopy
$Z0Z ‘T€ YHEeW 38 sy sig[noied

.
sduimoliog Jo Adusiind pue ajes 3Salau|

vZ0Z ‘T€ HOUVIN 30NT HV3A FHL HO4 SINJWILVLS IVIDNVNII OL SILON



by — {(zD} 12auapyuo) ..,..u.s:;:um

| e L v T T T 1 T W}.\ — * w
wsuedeasz ] ||ﬁ- S A [ /.J/ ,. o /w
UCHESIEDS pue = i
s03 Suiuw ayy ul 2q w SWwa) |euondadxy +xe
p 4 %518t LEOQ €20 BAQ K v . 4 3 FipdE o1es adrlaaod adALs 1qaq
uvoneea pue 2oud Su07 30 wawAeday |ediduig +asuadxy 154910 | uonenasdaq 153ia1u| 24043¢ Suiusey
sajes U1 aseaslap
jo  unoxe  uo
: . saniqen asea +s8umio
%0781 Lvro S50 Aunb3 jeyo BRI ! , 9 oiel Ayinb3-1g2g
una | 3uo] +s8uimouiog uiia) Joys
“1utesu0d duipuny .

wiay 3uol 01 ang %TLLE" 990 o sanyIger uaun) 51955y 1UaIND oney wauny

£20Z Tt Yarepw $ZOZ ‘TE Yy2Jew

SyIeway aueUBA papua Jeah papua loleulwoua(] 101BlaWNN sig[naiyed
ayy o4 /e sy Jeah ayy Jo4 /e sy

£70Z ‘TE Ydle pue $zoz 'TE YIEW papusa Jead ayl Joj soijel |ednAleue ale Suimoj|of ay)

SOLLYYH )

EV0 ar'o {(Ayinba pue s3uimoliog pue suroj) |eyded [elo]
ETEGL'ER'L 88'SPT'EL’9 1qaq pue |ende)
€¥'904'95°S 9£°898°65V Auedwo) ay) jo siapjoyaseys Aunba ayy 01 3jgeingialie Ayinba jejol
0L°980°LET CSLLE'ET'Z 1930 12N
S9E0S'E 08°0S6'ST SJU3|BAIND3 YSED pUE YSeD) 1S53
SE'065°0V'T ZE'8ZE'6L'L s8uimolioq pue sueoj |ejol
SL8VS'PE'T 99'S68'8Y'T s8UIMO 110G pUe SUBO| JUBLINI-UON
09'Tv0'9Y 99°ZEVT08 sfuimoliog pue sueo| Juaun)

€707 ‘1€ Yyre _“.Ncu T€ Yyarey —

e sy B 5y .

1SMO|0} SE 31 £Z0Z 'TE YDJBN PUB pZ0T 'TE YoJe 1. se ones Juuead ayy

‘Auedw o) ayy jo ajyoud

WSt 2yl Funoedw) noyum pasnbas i ‘suimolioq aininy |enualod 1oy ANgixaly |BIdUeuly YSiy e se ||am se ‘Ajundas ‘aruspuadapul ainsud o} aseq A)nba (e103 uoss Buidasy uo pasnioy s) Auedwo)

9y "s1ap|oy 3xels Jaylo 10§ S148udq pue :qusEm,;m J0j suinal apiaosd 0} anunuod ued Asy) eyl 0s wasuod Juiod e se anunuod ol AYjiIge iay) piendajes o1 si [ended Buideuewr ualm aandalgo

s, Auedwo?) ay] "anjea 1ap|OyaJeys aSIWIXEW pue ssauisng sii woddns o) Japio ul ones jended Ayyesy e suiejulew 31 18yl ainsua o3 s Juawadeuew |epded s Auedwo) 3yl jo aandalqo Aewnd ayl
ININIOVNYIN TVLIAVD (M)

" Jeah Bulwnsypoy oy ul ajgeAed o anp BuIodaq AJ|IGel| [ePUEUL BYY JIIED 01 JUIIDNYNS 3 |IM SUOIRRIAdO [BWIOU WO pUNy JO UNIEIUaSd padadxa
au1 yumsuoje asay| -Auedwod ayj Aq paJinbai usym pue se 3|qe|IBAE IpeLL 3q LB YIIYM SUNB| 00°000°7Z'T "SY Jo aun) ayj o1 uoddns J1ayl YIim 10 Wayl Wwoly punj jeuoiippe painsse sey Auedwod ples
3y} Jo pieog ayy Ag panoidde se osje pue Auedwod 3uipjoy ayy Ag panssi saajuelend 3le1odio) Ag paydeq ale sueq WoJdy ueo] Wua) pue Jipal) sialjddng / s19Ang [euonelad( ay) ‘a1ep Siy) uo se syueq
241 WoJy pauoiaues sYNe| 00°05S T 'SY JO 1PaLD JO 3ul pasnun ale 313yl ‘1ayung 'SSAUISNG 10 35IN0D AIBUIPIO BY) Ul Pas|eal aqg jIim Uydiym siasse |epueuy sey Auedwod ay) ‘Auedwod 3uipjoy a2yl Aq
papiaoad poddns pue spunj se ||am se suoneszsual |eusalul yum padpuq aq 01 pa1radxa s1 12aUsas SIYl Ul YIJewsiw Y] pUB 519558 JUILIND Y] JO $530x3 Ul Ajluand aie saniiqel| Juaund s Auedwod ayy  (ej{i)

(syje| ui 'sy)

vZ0Z ‘TE HOUVIN OIANT HV3A IHL ¥O4 SININFLYLS IVIDNVNIZ OL SILON



{z2) 12nuapyuol Aanisuas

o ,... .. Vo W { \ N ‘/ —~

iz Ly YW

A

Spun4 [enyny
0 uoneniany %y 6b- %S vl ) %LEL sjuawisanul a8esane pajydiam awi| S1UBLWISAAUI WOy Ppalesduas awoouj SJUSWI]SBAU| LO LIN3Y
| EIE3] 0} ang
Wipenscs Supung (sanpgeny ualiny -51assy |210] Swia ondanx3
; = ; prqer - way| [euoi X
wiay Juol o) an %64 87T %021~ %bL T . nja
b U0 o3 ang WbkiE =paAojdw3 [eyded) paAojdws jende) adessay | +xej pue 1sa1a3u) 240594 Buiuses PADIGUIR R1083 U0 LT
1suiedeasag) ’
uonesi|eal pue
1500 Suluiw 3yl ul
voneuea pue adud %8Z'85 %66°9- %L0'TT- uonesadQ Wouy anuanay swa}| [euondadxd +xe] Jaye 1j01d ouel 1yosd 1aN
rnm_mm Ul 3seasIap
jo junodde  up
uiensuod duipuny
w2y Buol 03 ang %IS'TS- (F99) (zz'€) jevded Buppiop suonesado woly anuanay ones Janouani |eyded 19N
1pas) sianddns / ypaid s1a4n
%E£0°0Z- 8TE 9'¢ UEs D 19dns / upa.3 ;s1adng saseynd |P10L i
jeuonesadQ Suipnpul sajqedeq apes) afesany Janouuny sajqeAed apel)
_ %6 - LY'8P 9E° LY $S3|qeAIaD3Y apeJ) adelsAay _ uonesadQ woly anuanay |_ Janoulin) 3|qeAaladay apes|
%BO'EL £6'S 0L'9 Asojuanu| adelany V1183 553] 5U0IeIado WOl aNuaAdy | ones jaaouin) Asoluanu]
ysuledeasayl
uonesieas pue
1502 Sujuiw ayl w
uoneea pue adud %SE 0T %C0°0T- %802 Aunb3 ejoy 5wWa)| Jeuoindadxy +Xe| JaYe 1jol4 oney Ayinb3 uo uinjay
S9|Bs Ul 3seaJtiap
jo  jwnoxe up
€202 ‘1€ Yarew vZ0T ‘TE Y2sew
syreway aJjuelep papua 1eah papua lojeuiwouag Jojesawnn sig|naiJed
3y} Jo4 /e sy ieaA ayy to4 /e sy

(swiey ut "sy)

#20Z ‘TE HOYVIN G3ANT HV3A FHL HO4 SINIWILYLS TVIDNYNI4 OL SILON



{z2) 1enuapiyuod >.u_>__.;cum

-

10 pouad e JaA0 513558 XB) PAUI3JAP O JUNOWE 3Y) (Uosge 0] JUI2NYNS aq [|IM "33 suonesado jo awnjoa payalosd ayl uiapisuos AUBduUIOd By jO SWOodL! Jjqexe)} 24NNy Juswadeusul Ayl O M3IA U|

PTOT "TE Y2IBWN IB SE pIEMIO) PBILIED UDAQ SBY ,SIXEL DWI0DU], ZT SV PY| 4O Swia) ul paanbal se Joaiayl uoiesijiin Jo Ajuielsad ajqeuosead Joy uoiduunsse
s uawadeuew uo paseq YoIuM SUNe| ££°960'€Z'7 'Sy JO 51as5e XB| paiiaja( JO unowe adueleq ayl ‘pasiudodas uaaq Jou sey SiSeq JedA-01-1eaA uo uoilenaidap Juipnoul s3SSO| YINS JO JUNOIIE
uo (1eaA ayl Joj sypje] [Z'7Z6'ST Su Jupnpour) syye| [S'SET'Z8 'Sy JO 1u31xa Yl O] S)asse Xel paiiajep Jayun4 ‘pouad ay) Jujunp Pasianal u3aq aAey 'awodul ajgexe) jsutede pouad palejndils ayl
uIylm 0213y} uonesin palacxa ayl Buuapisuod sasso| SSaUISNG U0 SJeak JallJea Ul paleald syye| Z6'006'0F Sy 10 S185Sy Xe| paliajag 1@ spual) 1sed uo paseq souapnud jo sanew e se AjFuipioddy
‘pouad yuanbasqns Ul 553UISNG JO AWN|OA Ul YimoI8 pue Jjoid jo Aljigeuleisns paldadxa pue Jeah Jualind ui sso| ayl JUIPISU0D Ppamalnal uaaq sey S13ssy Xe] Pasialaq Jo uoniu8odas 10y 3|BUDIlel ay)

(e£°960'€2°2) (o€ ST'6€8°IE (pe'2z68'vs'2) ST'8YT) PEETL'S (Ev'2SP'€9'2) (12n) (s33ssy)/Apqen xeL paudjag
6LZPY'08'C (9" €P, £L2'TS8'0¢ 2P IST'ITE {s1°89v1) £5°506'S 78'800°LT'E 51955y Xe) palisjad |ejoL
ZE'S - 98'ETT BU'6TL - (81°611) 7 si2io (2
80395 (r9°€b) (60'52) - SE'5bY (sT8vT) ££°Z8T £5'€8Y HSER At O SEINRI oL (P
suoisinoid 1ayjo
056071 ¥ IVELT 96'Z8Y'L = ¥6'895 061507 pue ‘salueApe ‘sGep [nyIQNOP 10 UOISIAOL (2
: 76°006'0€ 26'006'0€ - 88'V8L LT 08°589'8S $50] $S3UISNQ PagJOsqeun PAEINWNDY (q
68'659'8L°C = (88'09¢) TO'662'8LT - (op11522) T9°L8L'SS'T uonenaidap paqiosqeur] pajejnuwnady (e
51355y X&) pauayeq
90°9PE‘LS N 88986 816595 - £L°£08'T IV ISS'ES Ayjiger xe | pauagaq jejoL
) i ) . - (60°86T) 60°861 3|geaiadal 12e13u0) piemioy (p
66'6ST (61°8ET) 8T P6E 3 (£S°SET) L7628 1507 pasIuOWY 1€ patied sueo (o
- - (zz'1) T = (6s°g) ey spund |[2mnjA) Jo uonenjea Jied (g
53955V 2|qidueiyl
LODBOLS - 6T°9TT'T 8/'€96'SS : 86'vYT'E 08'818°Z5 pue juawdinb3 pue uejd ‘Auadoid 0} pareRy (e
: Aupgen xel paiuagag

anjsuayalduo) 5507 pue anisuayaiduio) 5507 :
PZOZ ‘TE YO 1EW 1By 101d Jo wBwAREIS|  £Z0Z ‘TE YIIEN JET) pue JI014 JO JUBWATeIS | ZZOZ ‘TE Y4B sieponsed

1e sy 03 (ypas)) /ediey) | 03 (Mpas)) fadiey) e sy 0} (ypaid) fadreyd 03 (31pai3) fediey) 18 sy

1SMO]O) SE ) JE3A [eIUBULY 3} JO pua ay) 03 Suuuidaq woly Xe 1 Paiiaaq 40 JUSWIAACA

‘JUBLLSSISSE SIY FunjeLs ul AW0dU| d|gexe) aJninj payaaloid pue saliljiqel| Xel paiiajep JO jesianal
pajpadxa a4y siapisucd Auedwo) Y] '|qUINPIP W03 SPIEMIDJ-ALIED $50| XB) puB S2dudlayip Alelodwal asoyl yaym isuteSe siyosd ajgexel auminj jo uonessusd ayy uodn uapuadap sl sjasse

XB) DALIBLAP JO UONEZI[eas JJBWNIN 3Y | "PAzI|Eal aq ||Im 13sse Xel paliajap ayl eyl ajgeqoud si 3 yoiym o3 Jualxe ay) siepisuod Auedwio) ayl ‘(v1Q) 519s5e.xe) palaap jo ANIqes)as ayl Buissasse u)

‘10adsas s1y) Ul PAAI2IRI SAJIAPE pue uojuido [e33) 3y) uo paseq pue 12y xe| AWOodu| Jo suoisiaoid Ay Suuapisuod papiacsd uaaq sey Xe] AWOdU)
KVL IWOONI

(syxey ui "su)

(a)
(e}
8p

¥Z0T ‘TE HOUVIA Q30N YVIA JHL HO4 SINIWILVLS TYIZNYNIZ OL S3LON



Ca

VEETL'S ST'6£8'TE
£6'£05'72 17°226'8C
097711 9/°816'T
(to'9gL’e) (11°288'9)
8t°£00°0T 76'006'0E
(66°EEL'Y) (08 '09€)
(£9°05¥'91) (e8°¥89°¢T)
(sz°2L0'Lv) (£9°£16'V9)
£20Z 'TE Y22 ¥Z0T 'T€ Y21eW
papua Jeaj ayj 1o4 _uw—u.._m Jeaj ayj 104
95 €LY LE £€02-2€02
ST'8SEET ZEOT-TEOT )
000ISTT'T 870Z-L20T
01°585'LT LT0Z-9202
SLEBT'SY Adx3 oN
Junowy Andx3 jo Jeap
€0 LYY (6 L Audx3 oN
junouny Andx3 jo 1eap

(syjep ut sy)

{ZD2) |IPnuapyuo) Ajanisuag

uoneidaidap /sasso| xe1 pasnun pasiudodasun
32Ua13YyIp WAUBWIRd JAYI0

uonejsaloye jsuiede uswAed asea)

seah aya Buunp |BSI9A3S $3550] SSAUISNG UO Y14

uoneindwod JeaA 15e| J0j PAIIPISUDD 550 SSAUISNG PAGIOSGRUN JO JUNOWE Ul 33UJ3Q
1105 yuawisnlpy

%P6 PE @ 21eJ XE) U paseq uoalayl (1pald)/adiey) xel awWody|

X} alojaq (ssa1) fu404d

sigjnaied
YZ0T ‘TE Y2IBW 10) 234 XB1 dnsawop Aq paljdninw 1josd Bununodde ayl pue asuadxa xe| JO UOIIE!|I2U0daY

5507 ssauisng

5507 ssauIsng

5507 ssauIsng

5507 ssauisng

uonepaidap paqlosqeun

sig|naiuey

:smojjoy se ase pasiuSodasun Jujuiewal sso| ssaulsng pajenwindde joj aep Audx3 ayy

uoneldasdap paqlosgeun
sigjnaiyed

:S$moj|[oy Se ale uonepasdap paglosgeun pue ssoj ssaulshg pajeinwinide Joy ajep Andx3 ayL

(@)

(p)

{2)

Z0T ‘'T€ HOUVIN A3ANT HV3A IHL YO4 SINFWILYLS TVIDNVYNIS OL SILON



LEDET SOV ON'W (z2) enuapyuo) “Auanisuag rZOT ‘4T judv ip23eq

Aiejasoas Ausdwany AdeypneyD JEWwny| ysiueipl L . 2ITN|ON 1928 d

1321 [BIIURUI JBIYD Aagnq@ yseyesd pueuy

Jauneg
(zt08080 : NIQ) Y5049 JRLUNY WIYSY

. - 10173410 AW} A[OUM . eydng Jewny) ysiysy

(00TLrTeo - NIQ)
1012341 aAINIaxX3-uoN yrewns y SJUBIUNOJIDY palaleyd

"d11 03 7 eYPOT Jo4

> 5101223417 J0 pleog ayj Jo jjeysq uo pue Jo4 21Ep UaA3 Jo Lodal Ino Jad sy

‘uonejuasasd Jead Juaund yum 3|qesedwos )1 axew 03 Auessadau Janalsaym paduelieas/podnoilas uaaq sey amBy S Jeap SNOIN3LY

‘uondope 113y} 104 SI3PoYaJeys ayl 03 aNssi 10) ‘pzoT ‘LT |Mdy uo Auedwo) ayj ;0 51033311 JO pleog ayl AQ pasoidde usaq aney SJUaWILLTS |2IDUBUY 353Y L

‘pouad Aioiniels ay) puoAaq D0y yum pasalsi3al aq o1 194 Si ydiym uonaeysnes Jo sadieyd Aue asey jou saop Auedwo) ay)
(20y) sawedwo) jo sensiday yum sadieys jo uonaejsnes Jo uonesisiday (H)
“J3pU3| 13410 JO UONMINSUI |BIDUBUL JO yueq Aue AQ J2)|Nejap |Nyim paledap uaaq jou sey Auedwo)d ay|
yneyaq i (9)
"Auadoud (weuag Aue Suipjoy 10y Auedwo?) ayil jsutede Juipuad 1o pajenul usaq sey Suipaadold Aue auaym ‘Ajadoud weusg Aue aaey Jou saop Auedwo) ay|
Apedoud jweuag (4)
'saiuedwod Yans yim Jead uaiund ayl SULNp uoijJesuBI] OU Jam I3 “SJBYY 3esodio?) Jo ALISiUlN O 2151GaM 33 Woly AuBduoD 343 Yyim 3|ge|IeAR UDIIRWIOU| UO paseq
saluedwo) yo-yonns yym diysuonelay (3)
LT0T ‘S8|ny (s42Ae| J0 Jaqunu uo VONIISAY) saluedwor Yim peal 1Dy BUl JO 7 uoNIas Jo (£8) @sned Japun paquisald siade| jo Jaquinu ylim paydwod sey Auedwo) ay |
saiuedwon Jo siake| Jo Jaqunu Yim sdueydwod (a)
"JUND2E JO $H00Q 3y} Ul PAPJIOIAI UD3Q 10U SBY 1BY] ‘T96T 12V XB| SL0dU| 3y JAPUN SJUBLWISSASSE Xe) ay] ui 1ead snowmasd Jo 1uasind 3yl SulNp aWwodul Se pasoIsIp JO PaJapualins awodu| ou st 31ay |
awosul pasopsipun (2)
“1eaA snonaid 10 waaind ayl uunp Asuasnd [eniA 10 Aduaund 03dAld ul paisaaul Jo papeds) Jou sey Auedwo) ayj
Aauauina jenua so Asuanind 0ydAsd jo spiedag (g)
"SaLeI1)aUaq AIBWNIN Y] JO JEYy2q uo ayi| Ayl Jo Aaundas ‘aajuesend Aue apinold 'q
10 (sapeinyauag alewnn) Aed Buipung ayl JO J|BYaq U 10 AQ J2A30SIBYM JAUUEW AUB Ul PRIJIUAPI $3131IUD J0 su0ssad J3Yl0 Ll 153Aul JO pudl Aj12asipul Jo ApJanp ‘e
‘|leys
Auedwo) ayl eyl (asimuaylo 1o Bunjum ul papiodal 1aylaym) Buipuelsiapun ay)y yim (Aueq Fuipung) sannua uiasoy Buipnpw ‘sannua 1o suossad Aue woly puny Aue paaj@das Jou sey Auedwo?) 3yl (1
"SaLRIIYDUIG DIBWNIN Y] JO J|BYaq uo 10 0} 3N 2yt Jo Ajunaas ‘aajuesend Aue apinoid q
10 (sauedyauag 2ewnn) Auedwo) aul JO J|eyaq uo JO AQ JIA30SIEYM Jauuew AUB Ul payiuapl $a1313U3 40 suosiad JaYlo Ul 159AUL 1O pud| ARIalipul Jo Ajdallp ‘e
JJieys Adeipawuaiu) ayl eyl Suipuelsiapun ayl ulim (salieIpawusalul) sannua udiaio) uipnjoul 'sainiua Lo suosiad JaY10 Aue 03 SPUNY PA3saAU) 10 paueo| Jo padueape Jou sey Auedwo) ayy (1)
wniwald a4eYS pue spuny pamousloq jo uones N (v
SJUBLWIAIRYS |RIDURUL 33 0] SION IAINIadS
auy 12pun pasopsIp UaAq AABY JBY) 3soyy ueyl JaYI0) Auedwod ayy o1 ajgedijdde JuIxD Y} 0} ||| ANPAYIS U} dpew (TZ0Z ‘Judy IST 3A1IAYD) SjuawpusWWe 03 Juensind uoHEWIOU| [EUCHIPPY

(sypreq ut “sy)

4]
0s

6b

7207 ‘TE HOYYIN d3ANI ¥V3A IHL YO SINIWILYLS TVIINVYNIA OL STLON



	Signed Audit Report
	Signed Financials

